
2013 SENATE JUDICIARY 

SCR4009 



2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 
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1/29/2013 

Job #17893 

0 Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Minutes: II Attached testimony 

Relating to the inalienable right to life of every human being at every stage of 
development 

Senator David Hogue - Chairman 

Senator Sitte- Introduces the bill - See written testimony (1) 

Gualberto Garcia Jones - Attorney for Personhood - See written testimony (2) 

Anna Higgins - Director of the Center for Human Dignity, Family Research Council - See 
written testimony (3) 

Tim Lindgren - Director of the NO Life League - In support of this amendment and says it is 
extremely important we pass so the Supreme Court knows we're ready for the change. 

Andrea Toman- In support of this bill 

Opposition 

Karla Rose Hanson- See written testimony (4) 

Siri Fiebiger- M.D. from Fargo, NO- See written testimony (5) 
She takes questions from the Senators 

Janelle Moos - Director of Domestic Violence - See written testimony (6) 

Alexis Grabinger - See written testimony (7) 

Not testifying testimony - (8) 
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Job #18244 

D Conference Committee 

ommittee Clerk Signature 

Minutes: 

Committee work 

Committee decides to wait for Senator Berry before proceeding 



2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Committee Clerk Signatur 

Minutes: 

Senate Judiciary Committee 
Fort Lincoln Room, State Capitol 

SCR4009 
2/5/2013 

Job #18330 

D Conference Committee 

Senator David Hogue - Chairman 

Committee work 
Senator Sitte moves the amendment (13.3060.02001) and explains the amendment. 
Senator Armstrong seconded 

Vote 
4 yes, 3 no 
Motion passes 

Senator Armstrong moves his amendment replacing primary with general 
Senator Berry seconded 

Vote 
4 yes, 3 no 
Motion passes 

Senator Sitte moves a do pass as amended 
Senator Berry seconded 

Discussion 
Senator Grabinger says he has a problem with the language with the bill. He does not 
think this is a place where we should be involved. Senator Nelson said she thinks this 
piece of legislation will cost one to four million dollars to defend and wonders if this is 
pertinent use of tax payer money. She agrees with Senator Grabinger's problem with the 
language of the bill. Senator Lyson says he will also vote no because the resolution is 
completely out of line. Senator Sitte quotes the State constitution. She believes this issue 
has the right to be put on a ballot. Senator Lyson states that bills and resolutions like this 
split our state and legislature completely in half and should never even be brought to the 
floor. 

Vote 
4 yes, 3 no 
Motion passes 
Senator Sitte will carry 



13.3060.02002 
Title. 03000 

Adopted by the Judiciary Committee 

February 5, 2013 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 4009 

Page 1, line 6, replace "defended" with "protected" 

Page 1, line 1 0, replace "primary" with "general" 

Page 1, line 16, replace "defended" with "protected" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No.1 



Date: _'2 __ -s-_-....:,-/__;�� 
Roll Call Vote #: I 

Senate JUDICIARY 

2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTE� 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. {)() q 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number !_3. 3D � {) ... () Z 66 / 

Committee 

Action Taken: D Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass D Amended _}2j Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By Seconded By 

Senators Yes No Senator Yes No 
Chariman David Hogue X. Senator Carolyn Nelson X/ 
Vice Chairman Margaret Sitte !'-- Senator John Grabinger /( 
Senator Stanley Lyson , )<.._ 
Senator Spencer Berry .v 
Senator Kelly Armstrong )(. , 

Total (Yes) 4 No 3 
Absent � Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Senate JUDICIARY 

2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. ?:j'(f,Dq 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number '$! tbttndl2<r'!-C( 

Committee 

Action Taken: D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended 

D Rerefer to Appropriations 0 Reconsider 

_..g1 Adopt Amendment 

Motion Made By 

Senators Yes No Senator Yes Np 
Chariman David Hogue X Senator Carolyn Nelson )C;-
Vice Chairman Margaret Sitte X Senator John Grabir1_9er IX 
Senator Stanley Lyson X I 
Senator Spencer Berry X. 
Senator Kelly Armstrong y , , 

Total (Yes) -----,IfF--· ____ No _.sZ�----------
Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTE� 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. ��Q 9 

0 Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment N_umber 

Committee 

Action Taken: �Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass p6_ Amended 0 Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations 0 Reconsider 

Motion Made By �- � Seconded By 
--�--------���---

Senators Y�s No Senator Yes .N...o 
Chariman David Hogue X,.. Senator Carolyn Nelson IX 
Vice Chairman Margaret Sitte f-..- ., Senator John Grabinger rv 
Senator Stanley Lyson / X-
Senator Spencer Berry 1>-
Senator Kelly Armstrong )1-

Total (Yes) ---------��---------- No 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 6, 2013 8:18am 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_22_002 
Carrier: Sitte 

Insert LC: 13.3060.02002 Title: 0�000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SCR 4009: Judiciary Committee (Sen. Hogue, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS 

AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (4 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 
0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SCR 4009 was placed on the Sixth order on the 
calendar. 

Page 1, line 6, replace "defended" with "protected" 

Page 1, line 1 0, replace "primary" with "general" 

Page 1, line 16, replace "defended" with "protected" 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_22_002 
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2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

House Human Services Committee 
Fort Union Room, State Capitol 

SCR 4009 
March 13, 2013 

19884 

D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A bill relating to the inalienable right to life of every human being at every stage of 
development. 

Minutes: Testimony 1,2,3,4,5,6, 7,8,9, 10 

Chairman Weisz: Opened the hearing on SCR 4009 

Sen. Margaret Sitte: From District 35 in Bismarck introduced and supported the bill. (See 
Testimony #1) 6:30 

Rep. Mooney: In your opinion what will the impact of end of life decisions that are being 
made everyday? 

Sen. Sitte: This bill should be known as the human life amendment, it has been kicked 
around congress since the 1970's. We all know that there is a point where the body will 
eventually shut down. 

Rep. Mooney: Does the end of life paper work even stand for anything then, shouldn't we 
have the right to make those decisions? 

Sen. Sitte: As long as we don't have assisted suicide on the books I don't see how it has 
any impact of all. 

Rep. Mooney: I just believe this will have legal implications. 

Sen. Sitte: Right now we are looking at the broad protection of the inalienable right to life. 

Rep. Mooney: Are we also going to support all the services that are needed? 

Sen. Sitte: We have many programs in place right now from education to health and 
many more to assist children in NO. 



House Human Services Committee 
SCR 4009 
March 13, 2013 
Page 2 

Rep. Fehr: When is the start point, in a petri dish or when? 

Sen. Sitte: From the moment of the conception DNA is put together. 

Rep. Fehr: 14:10 If every fertilized egg is now a human being defined in our constitution? 
How will that change and effect things? 

Sen. Sitte: When you have a broad statement of purpose we are only saying that we 
believe as a state that every human life at any stage of development must be recognized 
and protected. 

Rep. Oversen: If an individual has a living will saying they do not want any unnatural 
forms of resuscitation to keep them living, wouldn't we be infringing upon that decision? 

Sen. Sitte: That might come about later, but it does not change that right now. 

Rep. Oversen: If we are saying that the state protects life at all stages, constitutionally is 
then the state responsibility to step in. 

Sen. Sitte: We are pretty much doing that now; I don't see the impact you are seeing. 

Rep. Oversen: Does this also preclude sexual orientation and are we protecting all 
members of that class? 

Sen. Sitte: I'm not carving out any special protection for any one group of people. 

Rep. Oversen: This would diminish the human rights act of NO because we wouldn't need 
that anymore constitutionally? 

Sen. Sitte: I don't read that into this bill, this will provide a broad framework. 

Chairman Weisz: 20:05 Did you have a discussion with the Senate on how this might 
affect criminal, legal contracts? Did you discuss the ramifications? 

Sen. Sitte: No, not anything like that. 

Gualberto Garcia Jones: 22:00 Testified in support of the bill. (See Testimony #2) 

Rep. Fehr: 31:08 The term in the amendment "right to life", will that be intentional taking 
of life? 

Jones: I think the right to life is violated by the intentional taking of life, the right to life is 
not violated by difficult situations such as the twin to twin transfusion. Those decisions 
where a doctor has to make a decision to preserve life is not attacking the intentional right 
to life or a preborn child or the mother. 33:15 



House Human Services Committee 
SCR 4009 
March 13, 2013 
Page 3 

Rep. Mooney: You gave us your interpretation that there is an assumption there will be no 
legal consequences. An example is if I had cancer and I refused treatment but my 
husband disagrees and insists on getting me treatment. All kinds of those situations will be 
coming forward. 

Jones: I disagree, In the case of end of life, protecting the right to life simply means that 
you can't violate that right. 

Rep. Mooney: We already see cases in court such as parents that choose not to have 
their children get treatments, those parents are being brought to court, wouldn't we be 
opening that door. 

Jones: I don't think so, if it is a child they may not be able to make that decision for 
themselves. 

Rep. Mooney: That is only an interpretation. 

Rep. Damschen: I'd like to hear your response to Rep Mooney's comment. 

Jones: I think the law is clear with end of life issues. It cuts the line at euthanasia and this 
is talking about the right to life issues. 

Rep. Damschen: Are you saying there is a difference between sustaining life artificially and 
taking life? 

Jones: There is a very developed president to deal with those cases that would not be 
affected by this amendment. 

Rep. Damschen: That is established in law? 

Jones: It is. 

Rep. Oversen: 38:20 The definition of life here is from Harvard Medical School in 1823, is 
there an agreed upon, irrefutable definition of life from the scientific community? 

Jones: There is if you take it from the political realm that abortion has dragged it into. 

Rep. Oversen: You said no religious sentiment would support the idea that life begins at 
birth? 

Jones: I don't know every religion that exists so I guess I would have to narrow that 
statement. 40:33 

Rep. Kiefert: This bills intention is to stand up for life that does not have the ability to do for 
themselves, correct? 

Jones: I think it touches on decision making and the unborn has no voice. 



House Human Services Committee 
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Christopher Dobson: 41 :50 Executive Director of ND Catholic Conference testified in 
support of the bill. (See Testimony #3) 

Tom Frier: 445:44 With the ND Family Alliance testified in support of the bill. (Testimony 
#4) 

Daniel Becker: 52:40 The objective of the Right to Life is personhood. Something 
happened 7 weeks ago and was predicted 30 years ago. What is the preborn human. 
There are 7 states with amendments before them right now. The broadness. (Handed out a 
publication. See Handout #5.) Germany in 1940 started exterminating life they felt was not 
worth living. They felt that some were takers and not givers to the country so they 
exterminated them. 1:06 

Rep. Oversen: Has Georgia attempted pass a personhood bill? 

Becker: It has filed a personhood bill because we need a 66% of majority; we do not yet 
have that. 

Anna Higgins: Testified in support of the bill. (See Testimony #6) 

Mr. Shuh: 1:11:30 Testified in support of the bill. 1:19 

OPPOSITION 

Dr. Kristen Cain: Testified in opposition. (See Testimony #7) 1:26:15 (Dr. Cain handed out 
testimony for Courtney Schaff. See Testimony #8.) 

Rep. Kiefert: inaudible? 

Cain: I am against personhood. 

Rep. Kiefert: ? 

Cain: I am against giving legal rights to people that yet have not been born. 

Rep. Kiefert: Does that go against your code of ethics? 

Cain: No. The Hippocratic Oath states will not do no harm. 

Rep. Kiefert: You are saying you are alright with taking life then? 

Cain: No, I am not saying that, I am talking about the problem of giving the personhood 
status to a fertilized egg. I am also talking about end of life. 

Rep. Kiefert: So you don't think an embryo is a life? 

Cain: I don't think an embryo is a person. 
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Rep. Damschen: I think we established the end of life isn't the issue. How do we get 
around the establishment of when life begins? 

Cain: The law of the land is that until 24 weeks into life, where the fetus can survive outside 
the mother's body, the mother is the only one to be considered in this case. 

Rep. Damschen: Is that a moral decision, that determination or is it legal? Based on 
science we have been told that life begins at conception. What do we base our decision 
on? 

Cain: Our definition of conception is when the embryo is implanted in the uterus not when 
the egg is fertilized so already there is a discrepancy in the definition of conception. 1 :33:37 
Cain submits into testimony that is from a young lady with cancer. She froze embryos 
before she began her cancer treatment. With SB 4009, if she were to die and her treatment 
was not a success she would have frozen embryos, what would become of them. They 
would have to be disposed of, well how things are now she could decide what happens to 
embryos, she could decide make them the property of her husband. These embryos cannot 
be adopted out because of her cancer. This bill would interfere with medical staff to assist a 
patient in this type of situation. 1:35:45 

Chairman Weisz closed the hearing. 

HANDED IN TESTIMONY IN SUPPORT 

Maria Wanchic: (See Testimony #9) 

HANDED IN TESTIMONY IN OPPOSITION 

Janelle Moos: (Testimony #10) 



2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

House Human Services Committee 
Fort Union Room, State Capitol 

SCR 4009 
March 18, 2013 

Job #20090 

0 Conference Committee 

I Committee Clerk Signature � (!!/id� 
Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A bill relating to the inalienable right to life of every human being at every stage of 
development. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Weisz: Let's take up SCR 4009. 

Rep. Porter: I move a Do Pass. 

Rep. Looysen:Second. 

Rep. Mooney: My concerns are the overall implications. It defines not only when life 
begins, but when life ends. Bills and litigation will come as a consequence to either of them. 

Rep. Oversen: Why isn't there a fiscal note on this? 

Chairman Weisz: Because it is a constitutional measure we are not necessarily passing 
this. It will be up to the people. The associated costs would be based on the measure. 
Based on the law we pass, there may be a fiscal note on the measure. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: 9 y 4 n 0 absent 

MOTION CARRIED 

Bill Carrier: Rep. Looysen 



House Human Services 

Date: c3 -Q-/ .3 
Roll Call Vote#: _--�.!�--

201 3 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES� 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. /L 
Committee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken: 1>(oo Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended D Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By z!fef· :P� Seconded By #1-· � 
Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

CHAIRMAN WEISZ v/ REP. MOONEY v ,;' 
VICE-CHAIRMAN HOFSTAD v /REP. MUSCHA v v 
REP. ANDERSON ;/ REP.OVERSEN v 
REP.DAMSCHEN v v y 
REP. FEHR ;/ v 
REP. KIEFERT -y/ 
REP. LANING tv"/ 
REP. LOOYSEN v /1--
REP. PORTER v/ v 
REP. SILBERNAGEL //' 

Total (Yes) -------1�'------- No ---f7{ ___________ _ 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 9f¥,zr::-� 
If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
March 18, 2013 5:01pm 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_ 47 _016 
Carrier: Looysen 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SCR 4009, as engrossed: Human Services Committee (Rep. Weisz, Chairman) 

recommends DO PASS (9 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
Engrossed SCR 4009 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_ 47 _016 
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Testimony on SCR 4009 

January 29, 2013 

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, I am Senator Margaret Sitte from 

District 35 in Bismarck. 

SCR 4009 creates a new section in Article I of the North Dakota Constitution. 

The wording is simple: The inalienable right to life of every human being at any 
stage of development must be recognized and defended. 

The words of the Declaration of Independence remind us that our Creator, God, 

not the government, has endowed every human being with some inalienable rights, 

rights that go above and beyond the powers of government. We have these rights to 

life, liberty, pursuit of happiness, property, family, children and more because God, who 

made us, wrote these rights on every human heart. 

The right to life is not diminished by age or gender or abnormality, nor is it 

threatened by weakness, or illness or incapacity. Government has no right to abridge 

the inalienable right to life. In fact, when we look at history, we can understand much 

about the culture of a people by how they treated the weakest in their midst. 

Throughout the history of this country, we have had many instances of denying 

inalienable rights to categories of people. At our founding, black people were counted 

as only three-fifths of a person. After the Civil War, American Indians were not 

considered persons under the law. It wasn't until the beginning of the last century that 

women were finally considered persons and were able to vote and hold office. 

Forty years ago this month, the Supreme Court ruled that the unborn weren't 

persons. Justice Harry Blackmun wrote in the Roe v Wade decision, "If the suggestion 

of Personhood [of the unborn] is established, the case, of course, collapses, for the 

fetus' right to life is then guaranteed specifically by the [14th] Amendment." The portion 

of the 14th Amendment he was referring to is called the Equal Protection Clause, which 

was passed in 1868 to guarantee rights to black people. It says in part, "nor shall any 



State deprive any person of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law; nor 

deny to any person within its jurisdiction the equal protection of the laws." 

SCR 4009 is important to protect not only the unborn but people in every 

condition of life. When the headlines in last Sunday's paper proclaimed that smokers 

and the obese may not be able to receive health care coverage under the new health 

care plan, we once again see special categories being set in place for discrimination. 

When people talk about the costs of health care for the elderly or for Alzheimer's 

patients, we see the need to protect human beings at any stage of development. 

It isn't enough to say we recognize the right to life of every human being at any 

stage of development. We must also defend that life from whomever or whatever is 

threatening it. 

This amendment is intended to present a direct challenge to Roe v Wade. When 

speaking of individuals, the 14th Amendment uses the word "person," but the North 

Dakota State Constitution uses the word "human being," so the amendment follows the 

state's wording, "human being." By passage of this amendment, the people of North 

Dakota are asking government to recognize what science has already defined. In 1973, 

perhaps the members of the Supreme Court didn't know when life began, Now, 

irrefutable proof from DNA has shown scientists that each human being's unique 

characteristics are determined at the moment of conception. 

The Supreme Court has ruled that states may find more expansive rights to 

protect their citizens than those outlined in the U.S. Constitution and Bill of Rights. This 

amendment provides for a more expansive right to the people in this state, saying that 

in North Dakota the right to life is upheld for all persons. When this Human Life 

Amendment goes to a vote of the people and passes, it will proclaim to other states and 

to the world that in North Dakota the people have decided the inalienable right to life of 

every human being at any stage of development must be recognized and defended. 

I urge your favorable consideration of SCR 4009. 



Testimony for SCR 4009 
"The inalienable right to life of every human being at any stage of 
development must be recognized and defended." 

Personhood Amendment Tes imony of Gualberto Garcia Jones, 
J.D. 

The Personhood Amendment is the most fundamental expression 
of the pro-life movement's guiding principle that all human life is 
sacred. 

As we all know, in 1973, Justice Harry Blackmun single handedly­
and in contradiction to all the medical and legal precedent­
concluded that no preborn human being could be considered a 
"person" with the right to life because we simply could not define 
when life begins. 

Of course, Harry Blackmun way lying, physicians had long ago 
determined that life began at conception. Take this discussion of 
whether life exists before quickening from a textbook used at the 
Harvard Medical School in 1823: 
"The foetus prior to the time of quickening must be either dead or 
living. Now, that it is not the former is most evident from neither 
putrefaction nor decomposition taking place, which would be the 
inevitable consequences of an extinction of the vital principle ... 
Foetuses do actually die in the uterus before quickening, and then 
all the signs of death are present. The embryo, therefore, before 
that crisis, must be in a state different from that of death, and this 
can be no other than life." Elements of Medical Jurisprudence. 

Harry Blackmun was not just lying about the medical precedent 
for life beginning at conception, but also about the artificial 
separation of a human being from a legal person with rights. 



The Supreme Court Justice known for laying the foundation for 
American constitutional law, John Marshall, wrote in an 18 18 that 
"the words 'any person or persons' are broad enough to 
comprehend every human being." 

Not only did Roe v. Wade dehumanize an entire class of human 
beings, it was also an unabashed exercise of judicial activism, 
which stripped the states of the power to regulate themselves in 
order to protect the health, safety, and morals of their people. 

The Personhood Amendment is the fulfillment of the state's duty 
to guarantee the equal protection of the laws to every human 
being. As John Bingham, the drafter of the 14th amendment to 
the US  Constitution argued during the ratification process: "a 
State has not the right to deny equal protection to any human 
being under the Constitution of this country in the rights of life, 
liberty, and property." 

Justice Anton in Scalia has stated, unequivocally, that "the 
Constitution contains no right to an abortion" and Chief Justice 
Rehnquist has stated that, "when it becomes clear that a prior 
constitutional interpretation is unsound, we are obliged to 
reexamine the question." 

Dear pro-life senators, why are we waiting to challenge Roe v. 
Wade? Every day is another 3,500 lives iost. This may be an 
uphill legal battle, but fighting the fight is more than half our goal. 
With your courage and leadership, the people will rise, and the 
culture will begin to change. 

Passing the Personhood Amendment will fundamentally 
challenges the flawed decision of Roe v. Wade by: 



1. Recognizing the pre-born child as a legal person and a 
human being with the inalienab�e right to life, 

2. Asserting the right of the state to use its police powers in 
matters that affect the protection of the health, safety, and 
morals of its people, 

3. And most importantly by providing a basic principle with 
which to guarantee the equal protection of its laws. 

As the world moves further into the 21st century, emerging 
technologies are stretching the boundaries of medical ethics. 

Defining the right to life to extend to all human beings is 
imperative as we attempt to prevent +he abuse of defenseless 
human beings for the sake of "sc:entific advancement." Abortion, 
euthanasia, cloning, human experimentation, organ harvesting, 
eugenics, the creation of human and animal hybrids; all of these 
require a strong definition of the human being which puts a 
premium on our unique intrinsic value and inalienable right to life. 

Unintended Consequences: 
The abortion industry will try to create end of the world scenarios 
to dissuade pro-life legislators from supporting a personhood 
amendment. 

They will say that women will be prosecuted for miscarriages: 
There is not a single instance in 200 years of pro-life laws 
throughout American history of such a case. 

They will say that a personhood amendment will prohibit life 

saving medical care: In Ireland, where a similar amendment is in 
force today, women enjoy the lowest maternal mortality rates in 
the entire world. 



They will say that a personhood amendment will outlaw In Vitro 
Fertilization: Countries like Germany, who have suffered the 
ravages of the eugenic abuses of science, allow IVF while 
simultaneously protecting the embryo. 

They will say that a personhood amendment will outlaw abortion 
even in cases of rape or incest: North Dakota law forbids the 
death penalty for rapists, why should it impose the death penalty 
upon the innocent child? 

In fact, the abortion industry stands to lose a multi billion-dollar 
industry if the humanity of the pre born child is recognized and 
defended. 

A personhood amendment is the embodiment of the sanctity of 
life. It has been the goal of the pro-life movement since day one, 
and it is the best hope for a future, which respects the dignity of 
all human beings without subjecting any one person, or any class 
of persons to any other. 

With the personhood Amendment you have the awesome 
opportunity to leave a mark on the history of this great state and 
this nation. I pray that you seize the opportunity and blaze the 
way for a revival of a culture of life. 



Sixty-Third Legislative Assembly of North Dakota 
Senate Judiciary Committee 

Testimony of Anna Higgins, J .D. 
Director of the Center for Human Dignity, Family Research Council 

January 29, 20 1 3  

Mr. Chairman and honorable members of the committee, thank you for giving me the 
opportunity to testify before you today about the critical human rights issue of abortion. 

My name is Anna Higgins. I am the Director of the Center for Human Dignity at the Family 
Research Council, a Christian public policy organization that since 1 983 has promoted and 
defended human life, re ligious l iberty and family values in the United States .  We represent more 
than 1 .5 million people from Evangelical, Catholic, and other Christian denominations around 
the country. I speak today as a representative of Americans who oppose the destruction of human 
l ife in the womb. Fundamentally, we believe that life begins at conception and that this life is 
worthy of respect and equality under the law. We also believe that abortion is incredibly harmful 
to women, physically and psychologically. 

The purpose of this testimony is not to take a political position, rather it is  meant to highlight the 
humanity of the unborn and the detrimental effects of abortion. This testimony will highlight 
four important points: 

1) The humanity of the unborn, 
2) fetal development, 
3) fetal pain capability, and 

4) health concerns facing women who have abortions. 

Humanity of the Unborn: 

The denial of basic human rights of the unborn has become an indefensible position. It is 
undisputable that an unborn child is  a unique person from conception to birth. It is a foundational 
principle of western thought that l ife is a fundamental right given to all men by their Creator. It 
was this principle that guided our founding fathers to declare in our country's first foundational 
document, that all men are created equal and endowed by their Creator with unalienable rights, 
among which, predominant is the right to l ife . Liberty and the pursuit of happiness are of no 
consequence unless a person is first afforded the most fundfunental of all rights, l ife . As Thomas 
Jefferson noted, "The God that gave us life, gave us liberty at the same time ."1 

Previous to Roe v. Wade, the most egregious violation of civil rights handed down by the 
Supreme Court was Dred Scott v. Sanford in which the Court determined that a slave was not a 

1 Thomas Jefferson, A Summary View of the Rights of British America, 1774: 135. 

1 



person but rather property. This decision was rectified by the 1 4th amendment which guaranteed 
due process to all persons.  The 1 4th amendment is violated by the act of abortion . 

Abortion denies a unique human being the right to due process and equal protection under the 
law. Either an unborn child is a person or he is property. If he is a person, as has been determined 
conclusively by scientific evidence, it is incumbent upon the government, which is instituted to 
secure our inalienable rights, to protect every person's fundamental right to life in all 
circumstances. 

Protecting all human life from the moment of conception until natural death is not and should not 
be limited to the narrow practice of abortion . Equality under the law demands that every human 
being is protected under laws meant for such protective purposes. If the unborn child is truly a 
unique human being, which we now know to be medically accurate, then protection should be 
afforded the unborn, regardless of viability, in areas such as homicide statutes, wrongful death, 
and chemical endangerment of a child. In Alabama; for example, the Alabama Declaration of 
Rights, the state constitutional provision that establishes inalienable rights for all persons (Ala. 
Const. 1901, § 1), mirroring the language of the U.S .  Declaration oflndependence, was cited as a 
reason to support the applicability of the homicide statute as well as the wrongful death statute to 
the unborn regardless of viability. The Alabama Supreme Court noted that those words, "affirm 
that each person has a God-given right to life. ;' (Hamilton v. Scott, October term, 2011-2012, 

footnote 3, p 1 4) .  

As Abraham Lincoln said in reflection upon the Declaration of Independence, "nothing stamped 
with the divine image and likeness was sent into the world to be trodden on and degraded . . . "? 
All persons are so stamped from the moment conception . 

Whereas after birth, a person is protected from discrimination based on gender, race, and 
disability, legal abortion and the denial of basic protections to human beings at very early stages 
of development asks us to discriminate against a person based on his age and development. This 
position is incompatible with a Constitution and a society that places such high value on the 
rights of an individual . It is particularly troubling to deny these rights to those persons who do 
not have a way to speak for themselves but rather rely on those in power for protection . 

As President Obama recently reminded us, "This is our first task, caring for our children . It's our 
frrst job. If we don't get that right, we don't get anything right. That's how, as a society, we will 
be judged." Knowing what we now know about the development of the unborn and dangers of 
abortion, are we honestly prepared to say that legal abortion the denial of the right to life for the 
unborn is an acceptable price to pay for our liberty? 

2 Abraham Lincoln, Lewistown, IL, Aug 17, 1858, Speech during Senate contest with Stephen Douglas. 
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Fetal Development: 

When a human sperm penetrates the human egg, a zygote is formed. A zygote is the first cell 
formed at conception and has "a genetic composition that is absolutely unique to itself, different 
from any other human that has ever existed, including that of its mother (thus disproving he 
claim that what is involved in abortion is merely 'a woman and her body' ."3 The DNA present at I 
this point contains the entire design of the person and guides development of physical 
characteristics and personality.4 

If the zygote were not a human being, but a mere collection of human cells, it would exhibit 
cellular life but it would not exhibit the "coordinated interactions  directed toward a higher level 
of organization. "5 

In fact, the zygote, upon formation, "acts immediately and decisively to initiate a program of 
development that will, if uninterrupted by accident, disease, or external intervention, proceed 
seamlessly through formation of the definitive body, birth, childhood, adolescence, maturity, and 
aging, ending with death. This coordinated behavior is the very hallmark of an organism."6 The 
actual pregnancy begins at fertilization, not implantation as noted in the majority of medical 
dictionaries. 7 

About six days after fertilization, the embryo is implanted into the uterus and at about 22 days, 
blood is circulating and heartbeat can be detected on ultrasound. At six weeks after conception, a 
baby has electrical brain activity and eyes, eyelids, nose, mouth, and tongue are formed and at 
six to seven weeks electrical brain activity can be detected. By eight weeks, the baby, now called 
a fetus, has all the organs found in any newborn infant. By ten weeks the child can grasp, stretch 
and kick.8 

3 Keith Moore and T.V.N Persaud, The Developing Human: Clinically Oriented Embryology, 6th ed (Philadelphia: 
W.B. Saunders Co., 1998): 77, 350. 
4 Ibid. 
s Cathy Cleaver Ruse, Esq. and Rob Schwarzwalder, The Best Pro-Life Arguments for Secular Audiences, Family 
Research Council (20 1 1) http://www.frc.org/brochure/the-best-pro-life-arguments-for-secular-audiences : 4. 

6 Maureen L. Condie, "When Does Hwnan Life Begin? A Scientiric Perspective," The Westchester Institute for 
Ethics and the Human Person, Westchester Institute White Paper Series 1, no. 1 (October 2008): 7. 
7 See Christopher M. Gacek, "Conceiving 'Pregnancy': U.S. Medical Dictionaries and Their Definitions of 
'Conception' and 'Pregnancy'," Insight, Family Research Council ( April 2009) accessed February 26, 2013, 
http://downloads.frc.org/EF/EF09Dl2.pdf. 
8 Cathy Cleaver Ruse, Esq. and Rob Schwarzwalder, The Best Pro-Life Arguments for Secular Audiences, Family 
Research Council http://www.frc.org/brochure/the-best-pro-life-arguments-for-secular-audiences: 7-8, and Ashley 
Morrow Fragoso, Fetal Pain, Can Unborn Children Feel Pain in the Womb? Family Research Council (20 1 0) 
http://downloads.frc.org/EF/EFIOH06.pdf : 1-3. 
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Fetal Pain: 

The introduction of various forms of Unbom Fetal Pain Bills on both federal and state levels 
demonstrates the fact that the issue of fetal pain has become a major concern. Just as modem 
science has given us a glimpse into the womb; it has also revealed the fact that an unborn child 
can feel pain . The most common forms of abortion are now thought to cause excruciating pain 
for the unborn child and this pain can be felt as early as thirteen and a half weeks, although the 
consensus is that the unborn child can feel pain at least by 20 weeks. 

Pain is "a perceptive response to potential or actual tissue damage.9 Dr. Kanwaljeet S .  Anand of 
the University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences and the Pain Neurobiology Laboratory at 
Arkansas Children's Hospital Research Institute, testified that children of 20  weeks gestation (or 
even earlier) possess the ability to feel pain "and the pain perceived by a fetus is possibly more 
intense than that perceived by term newborns or older children ."10 

Between seven and twelve weeks gestation the unborn child becomes sensitive to stimulation .11 

The thalamus and cortex have begun to develop, but nerve pathways have not yet connected the 
cortex with the lower part of the brain .12 The brain stem is active at this point in development. At 
the beginning of the second trimester sensory receptors co\er the body of the baby and the 
hippocampus becomes functional.13 At this point, babies re

-
spond to invasive procedures. "At 23 

weeks, the nerves transport pain signals to the cortex are connected to the rest of the brain, and 
signals received through the thalamus can be processed in the cortex, allowing for a form of 
conscious perception . . .  " 14 

In the article, "Fetal Pain and Abortion : The Medical Evidence," Vincent J .  Collins, M.D., 
Steven R. Zielinski, M.D., and Thomas J. Marzen, Esq. note, "The medical evidence plainly 
points to the existence of pain sensation in the human fetus, at least from the onset of the second 
trimester ofpr:egnancy, and perhaps during the last weeks the first trimester. It indicates that at 
least three methods of abortion cause fetal pain ."15 

"Induced abortion will cause pain to a fetus with a functioning nervous system if the method­
used stimulates the pain receptors, excites the neural pathways, and the impulse reaches the 
thalamus. Dilatation and evacuation (D&E), abortion, abortion by saline amnio-infusion, and 
prostaglandin abortions are capable of stimulating pain receptors and exciting neural pathways. 

9 Ashley Morrow Fragoso, Ibid. 
10 Ibid at 4. 
11 Ashley Morrow Fragoso, Fetal Pain, Can Unborn Children Feel Pain in the Womb? Family Research Council 
(20 10) http://downloads.frc.org/EF/EFIOH06.pdf: 6. 
12 Ibid. 
1 3 Ibid at 6-7. 
1 4 Ibid at 7. 
15 Vincent J. Collins, M.D., Steven R. Zielinski, M.D., Thomas J. Marzen, Esq., "Fetal Pain and Abortion: The 
Medical Evidence," AMERICANS UNITED FOR LIFE, Legal Defense Fund Law and Medicine Series: 12) 
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These methods of abortion are employed during times in gestation when the fetus can sense pain . 
It must be concluded, therefore, that they cause pain to the fetus."16 

"We cannot measure the sum agony of these human beings. We can only know that it was real, \ 
hope that it was mercifully brief, and grieve because the ideology that so arrogantly asserts 
abortion as a "right" has subverted simple human compassion to such a degree that these young 
human beings continue to die with less concern for their pain that expressed for experimental 
rats."17 

There have been about 55  million legal abortions performed in the U.S .  since 1 973, many on 
pain-capable children. It is unimaginable that we would dismiss the possibility that these unborn 
children feel pain during abortion. 

Additionally, approximately 92% of abortions are done for purely elective reasons- on healthy 
women and healthy children. Only 4% are performed for reasons of physical health of the mother 
and 3% for the health of the baby. About 0.5% of abortions are performed for reasons of rape or 
incest, another 0.5% in order to hide a pregnancy, and 1 %  due to pressure from family 
members.18 ' 

Women's Health: 

The myth that abortion is good for women has slowly been exposed and dispelled by personal 
experience and medical science. Negative effects of abortion on women range from physical 
complications like infection, perforations and hemorrhage to serious psychological harm, such as 
depression, anxiety and even suicide. 

Physical Complications: Surgical abortion is a serious medical procedure and its complications 
should not be diminished. 

The most recent CDC Abortion Sureveillance, United States, 2009,  reported that there have been 
403 deaths resulting from legal abortions since 1972 .19 This number is undoubtedly a low 
estimate due to the fact that several states, including California, do not report abortion statistics 
to the CDC. 

Premature birthrates following abortions range from 36% increase to as much as 60% increase in 
cases where women have more than one abortion.20 Other international studies show pervious 

16 Ibid at 10. 
1 7 Ibid at 12. 
18 Lawrence B. Finer, "Reasons U.S. Women Have Abortions: Quantitative and Qualitative Perspectives, 

Perspectives on Sexual Health 37, no. 5 (2005): 1 13- 14. 
19 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report, November 23, 20 12, 
Surveillance Summaries, Vol. 6 1, No. 8, Table 25. 
20 Dr. Byron Calhoun, "Induced abortion linked to Preterm Delivery, "Dec 10 ObGyn News p. 10. 
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abortions greatly increase the risk of premature birth.21 By 2008, at least 59 studies have 
demonstrated a statistically significant increase in premature birth or low birth weight risk in 
women with prior induced abortions.22 

Placenta Previa is one condition that has been found to be a significant risk factor for women 
who have had abortions.  

"Placenta Previa is a condition is which the placenta has i�planted abnormally low in the uterine 
cavity. In "partial placenta previa," a segment of the placenta partially covers the opening to the 
cervical canal .  In "complete placenta previa,"the placenta completely covers the opening to the 
cervical canal .  Placenta previa can be potentially catastrophic to both mother and baby, as it 
carries the risk of unpredictable, sudden, severe hemorrhage, necessitating emergency C Section 
as life saving treatment. Very often this emergency occurs at a premature gestational age, 
increasing the risk for the baby's favorable outcome. It can be appreciated that placenta previa is 
no small issue, whether for the patient, for her baby, or for her attending doctor. And it is 
increased significantly in pregnancies that follow an induced abortion ."23 

"Thorp (OB GYN Survey, Vol 58,  No. 1 ,  2002) analyzed 3 studies, and found in women who 
had a previous induced abortion a 30% increase in placenta previa rates compared to women 
with no abortion history. Thorp also noted a meta-analysis by Anath et. al., which found a 70% 
increase in placenta previa rates in women with a previous abortion compared to women with no 
abortion history. "24 

Other complications include damage to the reproductive system including perforations, future 
infertility, later ectopic pregnancies or miscarriages, incomplete abortion/retained tissue.25 

Late term abortions are especially dangerous to women . A "'Late-term abortion' is an inexact 
medical term that has been used in reference to induced abortions in the 3rd trimester of 
pregnancy (28-39 weeks) and sometimes to 2nd trimester abortions ( 1 3-27 weeks)."26 

"According to Gaufberg, Professor of Medicine at Harvard University, post-abortion physical 
complications at various gestational points are primarily the result of incomplete evacuation of 
the uterus, uterine atony, infection, and instrumental injury. Specific complications of abortions 
include the following: ( 1 )  complications of anesthesia, (2) postabortion triad (pain, bleeding, 
low-grade fever), (3) hematometra, (4) retained products of conception, (5) uterine perforation, 

21 nrlc.org; See also Caroline Moreau, et a!, "Previous induced abortions and the risk of very preterrn delivery: 
results of the EPIPAGE study," British Journal of Obstetrics and Gynecology, Vol. 112 (April2005): 430-437. 
22 American Association ofPro-Life Obstetricians and Gynecologists, (http://www.aaplog.org/complications-of­
induced-abortion/induced-abortion-and-pre-term-birth/general-comments-on-the-increased-riskl 
23 American Association of Pro-Life Obstetricians and Gynecologists, http://www.aaplog.org/complications-of­
induced-abortion/induced-abortion-and-placenta-previalinduced-abortion-and-subsequent-placenta-previal 
24 I bid. 
25 nrlc.org. 
26 wecareexperts.org, " Late-term Abortion: Antecedent Conditions and 
Consequences to Women's Health," http://www. wecareexperts.org/sites/default/files/articles/Late­
term%20abortion%20health%20conseguences.pdf: 1 .  
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(6) bowel and bladder injury, (7) failed abortion, (8) septic abortion, (9) cervical shock, ( 1  0) 
cervical laceration, and ( 1 1 )  disseminated intravascular coagulation (DIC). At 1 2- 1 3  weeks, the 
complication rate is 3-6%, and by well into the second trimester, the complication rate increases 
to 50%, and possibly higher according to Gaufberg.27 

Medical abortion can be even more dangerous than surgical abortion, often due to the fact that 
women are not necessarily under the care of a doctor when the abortion is performed. 
Complications from medical abortions range from undiagnosed ectopic pregnancy to significant 
blood loss and infection, often as a result of incomplete abortion.28 

In his comprehensive analysis of RU-486, Chris Gacek notes, "Medical abortions fail frequently, 
and they often produce serious hemorrhage and infection. For example, according to the April 
201 1 RU-486 Adverse Events Summary there were reports to FDA that 339 American women 
had blood loss significant enough to require transfusions. There were 256 reported cases of 
infection reported in the United States. Approximately 1 5 -20 known deaths have been associated 
with the regimen worldwide, but this number is almost certainly quite low since our data does 
not include countries like China and India where the regimen' s  use is heavy."29 

Psychological Complications: At the time abortion was legalized not much was known about the 
psychological scars and risk of mental illness that affect women who have had abortion. Now, 40 
years later, we know from the testimony of women themselves and from scientific and medical 
research that abortion does in fact carry significant psychological risk factors. Approximately 
40% of women in the U.S .  have had an abortion, which underscores the fact that the issue of 
mental health and psychological care for post-abortive women is an overwhelming issue that 
touches many lives and must be addressed with the serious consideration it deserves .30 

Previous abortions put a woman at an increased risk for a variety of mental health problems such 
as panic attacks, panic disorder, agoraphobia, PTSD, bipolar disorder, major depression with and 
without hierarchy, and substance abuse disorders.3 1 

27 Ibid at 2, also noting, " The U.S. mortality rates per 1 00,000 abortions as reported by Gaufberg are 1 4.0 for 1 6-20 
weeks and 1 8.0 for after 2 1  weeks. E ven more dramatic results for second and third trimester abortions were 
reported by Bartlett et al. using national U.S. data spanning the years from 1 988 and 1 997. Specifically, per 1 00,000 
abortions, the relative risk of abortion-related mortality was 1 4.7 at 1 3-1 5 weeks of gestation, 29.5 at 1 6-20 weeks, 
and 76.6 at or after 2 1  weeks. Causes of death during the 2nd trimester as reported by Bartlett included hemorrhage, 
infection, embolism, anesthesia complications, and cardiac and cerebrovascular events." 
28 See Chris Gacek, RU-486 (Mifepristone) Side-E ffects 2000-20 12, Family Research Council, May 20 12 Issue 
Analysis. 
29 I bid at 1 5. 
30 http://www. thedai lybeast. com/newsweek/b logs/the-human-cond i ti on/20 1 0/03 /04/about -40-percent -of-american­
women-have-had-abortions-the-math-behind-the-stat.html, See also, Martha Shuping, M.D. and Christopher Gacek, 
J.D., Ph.D., Post Abortion Suffering, A Psychiatrist Looks at the E ffects of Abortion, Family Research Council 
(20 1 0) http:/ /downloads. frc.org/E F IE F I OB09. pdf. 
31 Coleman, P.K., Coyle, C.T., Shuping, M., & Rue, V. (2009), Induced Abortion and Anxiety, Mood, and Substance 
Abuse Disorders: Isolating the Effects of Abortion in the National Coraorbidity Survey, Journal of Psychiatric 
Research, 43, 770-776. 
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Dr. Priscil la Coleman, author of one of the most comprehensive studies of the mental health risks 
after abortion notes that, 

Overall ,  women with an abortion history experience an 8 1 %  increased risk for 
mental health problems. The results showed that the level of increased risk 
associated with abortion varies from 34% to 230% depending on the nature of the 
outcome. Separate effects were calculated based on the type of mental health 
outcome with the results revealing the fol lowing: the increased risk for anxiety 
disorders was 34%; for depression it was 3 7%; for alcohol use/abuse it was 1 1 0%, 
for marijuana use/abuse it was 220%, and for suicide behaviors it was 1 55%. 
When compared to unintended pregnancy delivered women had a 55% increased 
risk of experiencing any mental health problem. Finally, nearly 1 0% of the 
incidence of all mental health problems was shown to be directly attributable to 
abortion. 32 

Suicidal behaviors and actions are also an increased risk for women who have had abortions. 
Suicidal thoughts and behavior are very serious issues and can have devastating impacts on 
entire families. 33 

A few years ago, one young woman, Stacy Zaille, comitted suicide after an abortion. Her family 
has since created a foundation "to facilitate the post-abortion well-being and happiness of 
women."34 

Stacy's  parents have posted the fol lowing on the foundation website: "At age 20 our beautiful 
daughter, for reasons known only to her, underwent an abortion. She never revealed her situation 
or her solution to her family. Shortly after the abortion she asked for psychiatric help, she ended 
therapy after only 3 months. Not long after her 2 1 st birthday, she took her own life. She is 
missed by all who knew and loved her. We are convinced that if Stacy had been better informed 
about what she might expect following the abortion (physically and/or emotionally) and if she 
had been able to share her grief in a safe, supportive environment, she would be with us today."35 

This is not an isolated incident. For more stories from real women who have experienced pain 
associated with abortion, visit http://www.abortionchangesyou.com/explore?exploreArtFilter=all 
and Operation Outcry, http://www.operationoutcty.com/?Page=personal, an organization that 
"seeks to end the pain of abortion in America and around the world by mobilizing women and 
men hurt by abortion who share their true stories of the devastating effects of abortion." 

32 Coleman, P.K. (Sept. 2011 )  " Abortion and Mental Health: A Quantitative Synthesis and Analysis of Research 
Published tfom 1 995-2009, British Journal of Psychiatry." 

33 See Induced Abortion and Maternal Suicide, THE AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF PROLIFE OBSTETRICIANS 
AND GYNECOLOGISTS ABORTION AND SUICIDE SUICIDE ATTEMPTS ASSOCIATED WITH INDUCED 
ABORTION, References: Garfmkle, B., et. al., " Stress, Depression, and Suicide: A study of Adolescents in 
Minnesota" (Minneapolis: Univ Minnesota E xtension Service, 1 986): http://www.aaplog.org/complications-of­
induced-abortion/induced-abortion-and-maternal-mortality/induced-abortion-and-maternal-suicide/. 
34 http://www.stacyzallie.org/. 
35 Ibid. 
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Many women face devastating guilt, regret, stress and depression fol lowing an abortion. As a 
former crisis pregnancy counselor who has met with hundreds of women in crisis pregnancies, I 
can testify first hand that abortion is not the "cure" for an unwanted pregnancy; rather it is an 
additional trauma that a women must carry with her for the remainder of her life. This problem 
must be mitigated.  

The gth Circuit recently acknowledged the devastating impact that abortion has on women in 
Planned Parenthood v. Rounds, July 24, 20 1 2  which involved a dispute over a South Dakota 
statute that required disclosure to patients seeking abortion of an increased risk of suicide. 36 The 
gth Circuit court upheld the statute, noting, 

Based on the record, the stUdies submitted by the State are sufficiently reliable 
to support the truth of the proposition that the relative risk of suicide and suicide 
ideation is higher for women who abort their pregnancies compared to women 
who give birth or have not become pregnant. It also is worth noting that Planned 
Parenthood does not challenge the disclosure that "[ d]epression and related 
psychological distress" is a "known medical risk[] of the [abortion] procedure." 
S .D.C.L. § 34-23A- 1 0. 1 ( 1 )(e)(i); see also Gonzales v. Carhart, 550 U.S .  1 24, 1 59 
(2007) (noting that "[ s ]evere depression and loss of esteem can follow" an 
abortion). As a matter of common sense, the onset of depression and 
psychological distress also would increase one 's  risk of suicide and suicide 
ideation. See, e.g. , Ottar Bjerkeset et al . ,  Gender Differences in the Association of 
Mixed Anxiety and Depression with Suicide, 1 92 Brit. J .  Psychiatry 474, 474 
(2008) ("Depression is thought to be the most important antecedent of suicide . .  
. .  "). Thus, there appears to be little dispute about the truthfulness of the required 
disclosure. "37 

Conclusion: 

A decision by a Court cannot confer moral legitimacy on any choice. In the case of the abortion, 
time, science, and personal testimony have revealed devastating consequences on both the 
unborn child, who loses his life, and the woman who faces possible physical complications and 
severe psychological issues. All of these problems can be completely mitigated by recognizing 
the right to life of the unborn and outlawing abortion as an option except in medical emergencies 
where it is required to save the life of the mother. Additionally, the humanity of the unborn child 
as evidenced by medical science demands a response that upholds the protection for all life, born 
and pre-born, under the law. 

Any law that denies the humanity of the unborn violates the very foundational ideals upon which 
this country was formed. Life is not a right that is given by man, thus, neither can it be taken 
away by man. As long as we protect the act of abortion under the law, we teach the citizens of 
our country and the world that only certain persons are worthy of being a part of society. It is 
imperative that we end this arbitrary discrimination against unborn children. 

36 http://www.ca8.uscourts.gov/opndir/ 12/07/09323 1P.pdf. 
37 Ibid at 1 4 .  
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Testimony to the Senate Judiciary Committee 

from Karla Rose Hanson of Fargo, N.D. 
1/29/2013 

SCR 4009, SB 2302 and SB 2303 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Senate Judiciary Committee, thank you for the opportunity to 

�peak to you.  My name is Karla Rose Hanson and I live in Fargo. 

I am testifying in opposition to any legislation that defines a person as a human at any or every 

stage of development, including Senate Concurrent Resolution 4009, Senate Bil l  2302 and Senate 

Bil l  2303. Such "personhood" laws have a narrow intent - to ban all abortion - but a very broad, 

very negative i mpact. 

While we al l  may not agree on abortion, we should uphold the right to privacy in health care. 

Lawmakers should not interfere in the private relationship between a patient and her health care 

provider. Laws that d irectly or indirectly dictate or l imit how my doctor interacts with me puts my 

health at risk and infringes on my right for privacy in health care. 

A personhood law will affect treatment for infertility, life-threatening ectopic pregnancies and 

incomplete miscarriages. It will impact access to birth control, which reduces unintended 

pregnancies and a bortions and treats many medical conditions. Besides these and other health 

care options that a personhood law will impact, I also worry that this law will create an 

environment of confusion an? fear for medical professionals, causing them to avoid particular 

procedures and . medications out of worry that an overzealous, misinformed person will sue them ­

limiting reproductive health care even further. 

Personal ly, I used in vitro fertilization three times, I required the use of birth control products in 

order to conceive, and I had two incomplete miscarriages which could have caused serious health 

complications. Because of these experiences, I strongly believe that all of today's reproductive 

health care options should continue to be available to North Dakota's citizens. Health care 

decisions should be between a patient and her health care provider - without oversight by the 

legislature. Deciding if, when and how many children to have is a human right. 

A personhood law a lso would have a negative impact beyond health care. It would infringe on our 

religious freedom. Not every religion believes l ife begins at conception, so this l aw would impose 

one religious view on all citizens. A personhood law a lso prompts questions about how the legal 

definition of a person affects other laws - will embryos be counted in a census? can they inherit 

property? - resulting in review of all laws that wil l  be costly to this state. 

Because of these broad and negative impacts, no other state has passed the concept of 

personhood into law. Even M ississippi rejected a personhood amendment at the ballot with a 

margin of 58% against it. 

Finally, this committee should consider the constitutionality of a personhood law. In April 2012, 
the Oklahoma Supreme Court ruled that a proposed personhood amendment was unconstitutional 



under the federal Constitution. In  October 2012 the U.S. Supreme Court declined to hear an appeal 

of that case, upholding the lower court's decision that personhood was unconstitutional. If North 

Dakota becomes the first state in the country to pass personhood into law, it will l ikely result in  

litigation. This will possibly cost the state mil l ions to defend the law, potentially al l  the way up to 

the Supreme Court level, like the Oklahoma case. I do not want to waste taxpayer dollars to defend 

an extreme law that has a lready been found unconstitutional; I would rather those dollars go to 

other priorities in our state l ike education, infrastructure and health care. 

In conclusion, please leave the private and personal decisions about reproductive health care to 

patients and their health care providers and recommend "do not pass" on SCR 4009, SB 2302 and 

SB 2303. Thank you. 

Respectful ly submitted, 

Karla Rose Hanson 

Fargo, NO 



Testimony to the Senate Judiciary Committee 

From Siri Fiebiger, M.D. from Fargo, N.D. 
1/29/2013 

I 've been practicing o bstetrics a nd gynecology since 1986, initia l ly in  Washington DC as a 

resident at Georgetown U niversity, a nd in Fa rgo since 1990. I a lso have a Master's degree in  

Public Health from Johns Hopkins School of Publ ic Health. I 'm testifying in  opposition to SCR 

4009, SB 2302, a nd SB 2303 a nd its narrow intent to l imit abortion. 

I 've been l isten i ng to women's stories for over 20 years. I've learned that the women of N D  l ike 

e lsewhere make choices based o n  relationship and com m itment to relationship, a nd their own 

needs a re very rarely a ny part of the equation. What I've observed (and experienced) is that 

every wom a n  knows at a viscera l if not a rticulated level that p regnancy is a relationship 

balanced betwee n  life and death from the moment of conception. One of every two ferti lized 

eggs results in miscarriage when one includes chemical pregnancies. Death (maternal, fetal or 
neonatal)  is more often a real ity in the developing world but 8 of 100,000 p regnant women die 

in  the US, and it certainly occurs here i n  ND, a nd i n  my experience. 

Women m a ke the excruciating decision to terminate pregnancy on ly when they ca n't figure out 

how to meet the needs of that child, given their current l imited resou rces of e motional, 

fina ncia l a nd physical support. 60-70% of women who get an a bortion a l ready have one or 

more chi ldren. No one 'forces' a woman to get an a bortion, except by maki ng clea r their lack of 

support for the pregnancy a nd the child -whether it's the woman's partner o r  her pare nts, or 

her boss. It's truly an interna l capitu lation that she can't fulfi l l  her  materna l obl igation given her 

current rea l  constraints. 

If you share my world vision where a bortion would  on ly be necessary to save the life of the 

m other, then you would  focus you r  legislative efforts on e mpowering women:  by paying them 

equal if n ot i deal ly a living wage, by ava il ing them of healthcare for themselves a nd their 

chi ldren, a nd by p roviding qua lity chi ldcare. In today's world, my patients can't afford to marry 

their partners because they would  lose their hea lthcare benefits for themselves and their 

childre n, a nd that's immora l  ( I  believe hea lthcare is a human right, not the privilege our current 

system p urports). 

The narrow intent of SCR 4009 to p revent e lective a bortion wi l l  first of a l l  fa i l, as the pre Roe v. 

Wade history has demonstrated. There wi l l  be a return of the garage based a bo rtion mi l ls l ike 

those in West Fargo, described by my father, a chaplain for LSS in the 60s, who hel pe d  women 

get emergency healthcare for the ensuing com plications. 

It will denigrate a nd invade the doctor-patient relationship - which is not infrequently the on ly 

one where women experience open respect for their needs. 

It will mean removing the m ost rel iable forms of emergency contraception a nd reversible birth 

control ( I U Ds, a nd o ra l  contraceptives) - interventions a lso used for treatment of endometriosis 

and menorrhagia . Lim iting access to contraception wil l  mean a further increase in u nintended 



pregna ncies, a nd a n  i ncrease in a bo rtions. Today the unintended pregnancy rate i n  the US is 

40% - the highest i n  the deve loped world. The unintended p regnancy rate is a lso 5 times higher 

i n  poor women. Despite our low unem ployment rate here, we have the h ighest n u m ber of jobs 

per capita i n  the country - m a ny of them women with more tha n one part time job with n o  

healthcare benefits. Even when a wom a n  i s  insure d  in NO, contrace ption h a s  not been covered 

u ntil recently, a nd even now, sti l l  requires o ut of pocket costs, up to $100 a month. 

It wi l l  a lso mean p recluding surgery or chemothera py to treat a bnormal p regnancies: 

m iscarriages or ectop ics. Abnorma l p regnancies can progress far e no ugh to have a fetal pole 

with cardiac activity. Miscarriages can be, and ectopics a re l ife threatening or fata l if not 

treated in a timely fashion. Women a lready are grieving the loss of this chi ld, a n d  to have to 

face a lega l battle to save her own l ife is i mmoral .  

When a life threatening compl ication occurs during pregnancy, whether fetal o r  m aterna l, it 

should be managed by the physician according to the patient's needs a nd/or va l ues, without 

pol iticia ns or theologians. Extreme preterm rupture of membranes is a com mo n  event, with a n  

u nsalvagea ble pregnancy a nd frequently life threatening consequences. Contin u i ng the 

pregnancy of a fetus with lethal a nomal ies has serious emotional  a nd not infrequently financia l 

consequences for a l ready grieving parents. The m ost common ca use of materna l death i n  NO 
o utside trauma is peripartum dep ression resulting in suicide. 

You have heard testimony from infertility specialists regarding the radica l i mpact on the 

efficacy and risks of IVF. 

Perhaps legislation the l ikes of SCR 2009, SB 2302, a nd SB 2303 is necessary to clarify for m e n  

t h e  relationship that women have a lways understood. However, i t  serves t o  further subj ugate 

her and cripple her com m itment to existing re lationships. Wom e n  deserve respect a nd 

acknowledgment of their commitment to their ro les a nd relationships; they do not need laws 

to help them define l ife a nd death- especial ly their own. 

I would a pp reciate an o pportun ity to discuss this further. Passage of these bills in a ny form may 

mean that m a ny women's healthca re p roviders would leave the state and its women, i ncluding 

myself. 
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Chair  Hogue a nd M e m bers of the Comm ittee: 

My name is Jane l le  Moos. I a m  speaking this morni ng on behalf of CAWS N orth Da kota in 

o p positio n  to SCR 4009. 

O u r  Coa l ition is a m em be rsh ip based orga nization that consists of 2 1 1oca l domestic vio l ence 

a n d  ra p e  crisis centers located throughout the state that provide services to domestic v io lence, 

sexual assa u lt, and sta l king victims in  a l l  53 counties and the reservations in  North D a kota.  Last 

year a lone, these centers provided services to nearly 900 victims of sexua l  assau lt.  

Although our Coal it ion does not have a pol icy position on abortion, we a re u n ited in o u r  

concern for vict ims o f  sexu a l  assau lt a n d  incest. SCR 4009, from o u r  perspective, wou l d  b a n  a l l  

abortion, even for rape a n d  incest victims. W e  are n't h ere today t o  d ebate t h e  issue o f  a bortion 

itse lf; so we wi l l  l i m it o u r  testimony to the specific exclusion of these exemptions for rape and 

incest su rvivors in HCR 4009. 

Accord i n g  to the N ation a l  Victim Center and N ational  Cri m e  Victims Research and Treatm ent 

Center's study entitled Rape in  America : A Report to the N ation ( 1992) "p regnan cy from rape 

occurs with "sign ificant frequency" . Of the estimated 12% of ad u lt women i n  the U n ited States 

that have experienced at l east one rape in their l ifet ime, 4. 7% of these rapes resu lted i n  

p regnancy. Another study est im ated that 25,000 pregnancies fol lowing the rape of a d u lt 

women occu r ann ua l ly (Stewa rt & Trussell  2000) .  It's d ifficult to d eterm i n e  with certa i nty the 

outco m e  of the approxim ate 25,000 rape-related p regn ancies that occu r i n  the US, b ut o n e  
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study i n d icated that 26% of women pregnant through rape und erwent abortions.  Of t h e  73% of 

women who ca rried their  p regnancies to term, 36% placed their  infants up for adoptio n  a nd 

64% raised the ir  ch i ldren they conceived through ra pe ( Reardon et al 2000).  

I a m  not h e re today to te l l  you that a l l  survivors should or even want to have abort ions;  b ut 

they should have a choice. We bel ieve that s ince we ca nnot fu l ly u n d e rstand the path t h a t  

b rought t h e m  t o  us w e  ca n not make that very difficult decision for t h e m .  T h i s  is  a b o u t  a l l owing 

a person who has had a l l  decision making powers taken away from them as a result of the 

assa ult to  make a very important and personal decision about their  health, the ir  fa m i ly, a nd 

the ir  future.  This b i l l  a l l  but e l i m inates that option.  

I u rge a DO N OT PASS on HCR 4009. 

T h a n k  You .  



Mr. Chairmen and committee members, my name is Alexis Grabinger. I 'm a senior at 

Jamestown High School.  I also happen to be the first gestational carrier baby born in North 

Dakota. I am here today to oppose this concurrent resolution 4009, which states the inalienable 

right to life of every human being at any stage of development must be recognized and 

defended. I also want to oppose Senate bills 2302 and 2303 ,  which I will be hearing later for 

simi lar reasons. 

I have learned about tllis procedure through many resources, including my parents. 

Seventeen years ago, my mom and dad made a decision that affected their lives, my aunt and 

uncles lives, and my life. When the process started my mom had to take two shots everyday for 

two months to increase her hormones so her eggs could be harvested. Through this the doctors 

were able to get eight viable embryos. The doctors came and told my parents that they had to 

make a decision on how many embryos to implant at this point, and how many to save for future 

procedures in case the first couple embryos weren 't  successful. My parents with the consultation 

of the doctors chose to implant two. After the embryos were implanted the doctor said it was 

going to take 2-3 weeks, before any results would show, because the pregnancy tests would show 

negative until that point. At this point they kept the other embryos frozen until after I was born. 

The place that was storing the frozen embryos was closing and my parents had to make a 

decision as to whether they should keep these embryos at a frozen state with a significant amount 

of cost or allow them to be terminated and not be used in the future. My parents decided that it 

was unrealistic to continue to pay for them or let somebody else have them. To suggest that 

within this resolution that these embryos are actually human beings at this stage would make it 

an act of abortion to terminate them. 



I strongly believe my parents and the doctors are not abortionists, but rather miracle 

workers who brought life when there was none. If these laws are passed, the future of any more 

miracles like my situation would not happen in North Dakota. This would cause heart-ache for 

many couples. So, here I stand today and I ask you for a do not pass on resolution 4009, Senate 

Bill 2302, and 2303 . 
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January 28, 2013 

Dear Senate Judiciary Committee Members, 

Tha n  I< you for this opportunity to a llow Temple Beth El  congregation to weigh i n  on the legislation 

regarding reproductive rights a n d  a woman's abi lity to o btain a safe and l egal abortion in the state of 
North Dakota. If you are not famil iar  with our congregation, we a re a Reform Jewish synagogue 

serving Fargo and surrounding com m unities. We feel strongly that the legislation being considered 

h ere would damage the h ealth and safety of the women and famil ies of North Dakota and would 

sign ificantly strip away the rights of members of the Jewish community to practice our faith and 

make health decisions consistent with our religious texts and precepts. 

The issue of abortion has been debated and d iscussed for centuries amongst rabb is and Jewish 
scholars. Halacha {Jewish l aw) states that a baby becomes a full-fledged human being when the head 
emerges from the womb, or, in the case of a "feet first" birth, when most of the fetal body is outside 
the body. Orthodox, Conservative, and Reform Jewish traditions have a l l  found abortion to be the 
moral choice u nd er certai n  circum stances. Although Judaism views an u n born fetus as precious and 

to b e  protected .. our faith teaches us that the l ife and well-being of the mother is paramount.. placing 
a h igher value on existing l ife than on potentia l  l ife. Women are commanded to care for their own 
nea\th a'i\d we\\-he\'i\% aoo'I'C aU e\Ste. 1he.'ief�e, th'Cfe a\'e se\lera\ \r.star.ces whe'i\ luda\sm 'i\Ot or.\v 

condones abortions, but they are mandated .  

Mishnah Ohafoth 7:6, for example, forbids a woman from sacrificin g  her own life for that of the fetus, 
a nd if her life is threatened, the text permits her no other option but abortion.  In addition, if the 

mental health, sanity, or self-esteem of the woman {e.g., i n  the case of rap e  o r  i n cest) is at risk due to 
the pregnancy itself, the Mishnah permits the woman to term in ate the pregnancy. It is due to the 

fu ndamental Jewish belief i n  the sanctity of l ife that abortion is viewed as both a moral and correct 
d ecision under some circumstances. 

The legislation being considered here today places at risk the rights of Jewish citizens of North Dakota 
from draw\ng on t'rre\r 0'\Nft iann and re\\g\ous teach\ngs when mak\ng what can on\y be a terr}'o\y 

d ifficult and heart-wrenching d ecision - indeed during a time when many women and their families 
may be in greatest need to caH on their rabbis a nd fafth for morar guidance. We ask that you reject 

the b i l ls considered here today and to trust the women of North D akota to m ake healthy 
reproductive choices consistent with their faith and relationship with G-d. 

· Respectful ly submitted, 

Max Goldberg, Founder & First President 
Bev Jacobson, President 
Dinah Goldenberg, First Vice President 
Jim Shaw, Second Vice President 

Abby Gold, Treasurer Janeen Kobrinsky, Lay Rabbi 
Wendy Gordon, Sec.rerary Joanne Kaeding, Administrative Assistant 
Ted Kleiman, IJ1l111flll11te Past Presidenr 



Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee, thank you for the opportunity to address 
you this morning. My name is ShaunAnne Tangney, and I am from Minot. This is the 
third time in as many legislative sessions that I have addressed legislative 
committees regarding specious personhood legislation such as the one before us 
today. Once again, I find the proposed legislation so fraught with logical, scientific, 
and legal error that I am compelled to testify against it. 

The reference throughout the bill to a fetus as a "child," an "unborn child," or a 
"pre born child" requires disambiguation. First, this kind of "personhood argument" 
is  a reinterpretation of United States law and history by people with extreme 
religious views. Any careful and rigorous and honest study leads to the conclusion 
that America was founded as a free country, not a theocracy, and there can be no 
imposition of religious beliefs in the United States. Second, such "personhood" 
arguments commit the fallacy of equivocation in that they attempt to equate the 
biological concept of "human being" or "human life" with the political concept of 
"person." Persons have rights, rights being the principles that identify our proper 
freedom of action-which is another way of saying that rights are ascribed to 
persons who exist in a society (a hermit living alone in a cave all his or her life 
would have no need for rights). Rights cannot be applied to an embryo, zygote, or 
fetus because none of those l ive in a society. Each of those are dependent upon a 
l iving woman, and cannot exist separate from her. An embryo, zygote, or fetus may 
be seen as a potential person, but to ascribe rights to a potential person is a 
profound error, and commits the fal lacy of the continuum. The fact that a zygote 
may develop into a born infant does not prove the zygote to be the same thing as a 
born infant-any more than an acorn is an oak tree or a caterpillar is a butterfly. As 
philosopher Leonard Peikoff observes, to treat a zygote as a potential adult human 
is the same thing as treating an adult human as a potential corpse. In  sum, the 
"personhood" debate and language is fraught with logical, historical, and political 
errors, and should be avoided by legislators. 

The bill is also problematic as it does not reflect actual human gestational biology 
correctly: It tries to inflame the sentiment by implying that any movement or 
physical development on the part of the fetus "makes it human." I n  the embryonic 
stage, the zygote is invisible to the naked eye, has no human organs, and no human 
form, no capacity for emotion or awareness; indeed, a human zygote at this stage 
looks very similar to those of many other species. At the fetal stage of development, 
while the heart, hands, feet, brain, and other organs are present from week six, they 
are only at the beginning of development and exhibit only minimal and largely 
uncontrolled or unconscious movements. Any breathing-like movement of the lungs 
in the fetus is not breathing per se, but rather mere stimulation of lung 
development. It is also important to note that the circulatory system of a fetus 
works differently from that of born humans because the lungs are not in use. 
Finally, it is worth noting here that a fetus is not capable of feeling pain until the 
third trimester. 



Quite frankly, this bill is stupefying in its ignorance of basic human biology. Every 
time a man ejaculates-for the purposes of conception or otherwise-some 
3 00,000,000 sperm are released-and yet men are never challenged for the 
destruction of those 3 0 0,000,000 so-called "pre born children." Indeed, when sperm 
and egg do meet and attach in the human body, forming a zygote, the human body 
works diligently to kill or destroy the rest of the ejaculated sperm so as not to 
endanger the development of the zygote. Similarly, 50% of all zygotes fail to 
implant in the uterus and die, and yet we would never consider holding every 
pregnant woman liable for murder even though we know her body willingly and 
knowingly destroyed millions of so-called "pre born children." My point is this :  the 
language of the "preborn child" creates a very slippery slope, and is in fact 
disingenuous. 

The language regarding a "human-hybrid animal" also seems ignorant of basic 
biology. Science is clear on the fact that a human sperm cannot penetrate the egg of 
any other animal, and that a human egg cannot be penetrated by the sperm of any 
other animal. Sperm and egg of all  species have a kind of "lock and key" protection 
system, only allowing for fertilization by a member of  the same species, thus 
ensuring the survival of that species as distinct and separate. And while there has 
been some media hype about the creation of " chimera" -a creature that is  part 
human and part animal-a bill that is clearly an anti-abortion bill i s  no place to 
address that hype. The use of nonhuman animals to produce human organs, cells, or  
blood, i s  certainly one of great ethical concern, and it  deserves an ethical debate, not  
a flat-out veto. Finally, the definition in the bill of pluripotent cells is  also 
problematic. Pluripotent cells-or stem cells-can never develop into a fetal or 
adult organism because they lack the potential to contribute to embryonic tissue 
such as the placenta. The bill tries to include stem cells as so-called "preborn 
children," but this is not scientifically correct. 

While this bill has carefully crafted language regarding the prohibition or restriction 
of many different kinds of medical research or procedures that might inj ure or  
destroy a zygote or fetus, it would create unstable ground for patients and 
physicians alike. As I have testified before, between 2000 and 2009 I underwent ten 
surgeries .  Several of these required X-rays, MRis, CT scans, and H I DA scans. Before 
each procedure, I was asked whether or not I was pregnant because those kinds of  
tests can harm a fetus. I always answered "no," because as far as  I knew, I was not  
pregnant-but as we all know, a woman can be quite far along in a pregnancy and 
not know that she is pregnant. Were this bill to  be passed into law, both women and 
doctors could be held liable for such an error. Furthermore, women might cease to 
seek out critical healthcare for fear of prosecution, and doctors might cease to offer 
or prescribe such critical health care for a similar fear of prosecution.  

The bill also includes carefully crafted language regarding contraception in its none­
too-thinly-veiled attack on birth control. Even though overwhelmingly safe and 
effective, drugs as the birth control pill, the "morning after pill," and such devices as 
the IUD, which, although designed to prevent fertilization, can sometimes prevent 



the implementation of a fetus. However, birth control and abortion are two vastly 
different things and should not be confused. Indeed, while the population is evenly 
split on abortion (in 2010, 46% identified as "pro-life;" 45% identified as "pro­
choice"), 99% of all  women who have ever had intercourse have used some form of 
contraception, and 82% have used the oral contraceptive pill, clearly indicating that 
the majority of the population is in favor of birth control. The North Dakota state 
legislature is not in place to ratify or make legal the extremist concerns of a fringe 
group, but to represent the majority of the population. Enacting a bill into law that 
so clearly goes against the beliefs and practices of the majority of the population is 
wrongheaded and anti-democratic. 

Finally, this bill lays the groundwork to ban abortion without exception, even in  
cases of rape, incest, or  danger to the woman, and yet i t  does so in a sneaky, 
abstruse, and callous manner that I find unbefitting of the North Dakota state 
legislature. It threatens the physical and mental health of women on so many levels 
that it can only be described as draconian. For all of the reasons outlined above, I 
urge you in the strongest possible way to recommend a DO NOT PASS on SB2302 .  It 
represents fringe values, it exhibits an ignorance of human biology, and promotes 
poorly and ignorantly conceived law. It is a bad bill and should not become North 
Dakota State Law. 

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter. 
Respectfully, 
ShaunAnne Tangney 
Minot, North Dakota 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 4009 

Page 1 ,  l ine 6 ,  replace "defended" with "protected" 

Page 1 ,  line 16 , replace "defended" with "protected" 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 4009 

Page 1 ,  line 1 0, replace "primary" with "general" 
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Dear Senator : 

I t  i s  wi th great fear that I wri t e  this letter to you oppos ing the measures 
out l ined i n  S CR4 0 0 9 ,  S B2 3 0 2 , S B2 3 0 3 ,  and SB2 3 0 5 . There are s everal 

imp l i ca t i ons that would negatively a f fect pati ents diagnosed with cance r .  I 

am a speci a l i s t  in cancer treatment and care for many young adult s  with 

cancer . I spe c i a l i z e  in " survivorship care " which i s  care o f  cancer 
pat i en t s  a ft e r  therapy . I focus on the late e f fects of treatment and how to 

ge t hem t o  improve cancer survivor ' s  quality of l i fe . Unfortuna t e l y  

e r t i l i t y  i s  a comp l i cation o f  s ome cancer treatment . W i t h  modern advances 

fert i l i t y  p r e s e rvation the dream o f  a fami ly can be a reality for these 

p a t i en t s  t hat go on t o  lead healthy normal lives after cance r . 

Thi s b i l l  woul d  ban the freezing of all embryos ,  which i s  how female patient s 

are abl e  to pres erve the i r  own eggs for future chi ldren after chemotherapy 

has damaged their ovari e s . I t  a l s o  bans donor sperm and donor eggs whi c h ,  

f o r  many cancer pat i ent s ,  a r e  needed i f  they can ' t  pre s e rve the i r  own 

f e rt i l i t y . 

I t  a l s o  bans t he t reatment o f  pre gnant patient s with chemotherapy because o f  

t h e  po s s ib l e  damage that i t  may have on a n  unborn fetus , despi t e  t he fact 

that the cancer would l imi t the mother ' s  l i fe . I don ' t  unde r s t and how 

t h i s  could be cons i dered "pro-l i f e "  when both the mother and therefore 

the unborn fetus would l o s e  the i r  l i ve s . I have been involved in the care of 

these mothers on s everal occas ions and I do not ta ke l i ght ly the r i s k  but 
have s een the s e  women become l ong-term cancer survivors with healthy 

chi ldren . 

I t  i s  hard enough for these pati ent s to hear the deva stat ing diagno s i s  o f  

cance r ;  i t  i s  even wor s e  when the i r  abi l i t y  to have a fami ly i s  t a ken away . I 

a l s o  do not b e l i eve it i s  for the gove rnment to withho ld l i fe - s aving medi cal 

t re atment including chemotherapy t o  pregnant pat i ent s . I s incere l y  hope you 

w i l l  opp o s e  t h i s  b i l l . 

Re spe ct ful l y ,  

Shelby T e r s t r i ep ,  MD 

Medical Oncol o g i s t  

1 



Testimony on SCR 4009, House Human Services 

March 13, 2013 

Mr. C h a i rm a n  a n d  mem bers of the c o m m ittee, I am Senator M a rga ret Sitte fro m 

District 3 5  i n  B ismarck.  

SCR 4009 creates a new section i n  Artic le I of the N o rth Da kota Constitution . The 

wo rd i ng i s  s i m p l e :  The i nal ienable right to l ife of every human bei ng at any stage of 

development must be recognized and protected . 

The wo rds of the Decl a ration of I n d ependence rem i n d  u s  t h a t  o u r  Creator, God, 

n ot the gove rn m ent, has endowed every h u m a n  being with so me i n a l ie n a b l e  rights, 

rights that go a bove a n d  beyo n d  the powers of govern ment.  We h ave these rights to 

l ife, l i b e rty, p u rsuit  of h a ppi n ess, property, fa m i ly, c h i l d ren a n d  m o re beca use God, who 

m a d e  us, wrote these rights on every h u m a n  heart. 

The right to l ife is not d i m i n ished by age or gender or a bnorm a l ity, nor is it 

th reate n e d  by wea kness, or i l l n ess or i ncapacity. G overn m ent has n o  right to a bridge 

the i n a l ie n a b l e  right to l ife . I n  fact, when we look at h istory, we ca n u n d e rsta n d  m uch 

a bout the c u l t u re of a people by how they treated the wea kest in t h e i r  m idst. 

Th roughout the h istory of this cou ntry, we h ave had m a ny i n sta n ces of denying 

i n a l i e n a b l e  rights to categories of people .  At our fou n d i ng, black p e o p l e  were cou nted 

as o n ly th ree-fifths of a person .  After the Civi l  War, America n I n d ia n s  were not 

considere d  persons u n der the law. It wasn't u nt i l  the begi n n ing of t h e  l a st century that 

wo m e n  were fi n a l ly considered persons a n d  were a bl e  to vote a n d  h ol d  office.  

Fo rty yea rs ago the S u p reme Co u rt ru led that the u n born we ren't persons. 

J usti ce H a rry B lackm u n  wrote i n  the Roe v Wade decision, "If the suggestion of 

Person h ood [of the un born] is  established, the case, of cou rse, col la pses, for the fetus' 

right to l ife is then guaranteed specifica l ly by the [14th] Amend m e nt." 

The portion of the 14th Amendment h e  was refe rring to is c a l l e d  the E q u a l  

P rotecti on C lause, w h i c h  was pa ssed i n  1868 t o  g u a ra ntee rights t o  b l ack people .  It  says 

i n  pa rt, "nor s h a l l  a ny State d e p rive a ny person of l ife, l i berty, or p r o p e rty, without due 

p rocess of l aw; nor d e ny to any person with i n  its  j u risd iction the eq u a l  protection of the 

l aws." 



By passage of th is  a m e n d m ent, the people of N o rth Da kota a re a s k i n g  

government t o  recogn ize w h at science has a l ready d efined : a n  u n b o rn h u m a n  b e i n g  is a 

person .  I n  1973, perha ps the m e m bers of the Supre m e  Cou rt d i d n' t  k n ow w h e n  l ife 

bega n .  N ow, i rrefuta b l e  p roof fro m DNA has shown scientists that e a c h  h u m a n  bei ng's 

u n i q u e  c h a ra cteristics a re d etermi ned at the moment of conce pti o n .  

SCR 4009 i s  i m portant l egislation to protect n ot o n ly t h e  u n b o rn b u t  people i n  

every con d it ion a n d  a g e  of l ife . W h e n  t h e  h ea d l i nes i n  a J a n u a ry newspaper p rocla imed 

that smokers a nd the o bese may not be ab le  to receive hea lth c a re coverage u nder the 

Affordable Ca re Act, we o n ce aga i n  see specia l  categories being set in p l a ce for 

d iscri m i nati o n .  W h e n  peo ple ta l k  a bout the costs of hea lth c a re for the e l de rly or for 

Alzheimer's patients, we see the n eed to protect h u ma n  bei ngs at a ny stage of 

d evelopment.  

Arti c le I ,  Sect ion 2 of the N o rth Da kota Constituti on begi n s, "Al l political power is 

inherent in the people.  Govern ment is instituted for the protection, secu rity and 

benefit of the people . . .  " It  isn't e nough to say we recognize the right to l ife of every 

h u m a n  being at a ny stage of d evelopment.  We m u st a lso p rotect t h a t  l ife from 

whom eve r or whatever is t h reate n i ng it. 

Th is a m end m ent i s  i ntended to present a d i rect c h a l l e nge to Roe v Wade. When 

speaking of i n d ivid u a ls, t h e  14th Amendment uses the word "perso n , "  b u t  the N o rth 

Da kota State Constitution uses the word " h u m a n  being," so the a m e n d m e nt fo l lows the 

state's word i ng, "h u m a n  being." 

Whether  o r  n ot the c o u rt accepts this  a me n d ment a s  a c h a l l e n ge to Roe, it sti l l  

serves anothe r  i m p o rtant p u rpose. The Su preme Cou rt h a s  r u l e d  t h a t  states m a y  fi n d  

more expansive rights t o  p rotect their  citizens than those out l i ned i n  the U .S.  

Constitutio n  and B i l l  of Rights. This a m e n d ment p rovides fo r a m ore expa n sive right to 

the people i n  this  state, saying that i n  N orth Da kota the right to l ife i s  u p h e l d  fo r a l l  

h u m a n  beings.  

When this  H u m a n  Life Amend ment goes to a vote of the peo p l e  a n d  passes, it  

wi l l  p rocla i m  to oth e r  states and to the world that i n  N o rth Da kota t h e  people h ave 

d ecided, 1 1The i n a l i e n a b l e  right to l ife of every h u m a n  being at a ny stage of d evelopment 

m ust be recogn ized and p rotecte d . 1 1 

I u rge you r  favora b l e  consideration of SCR 4009 . 
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SCR 4009 
"The inalienable right to life of every human being at any stage of 
development must be recognized and defended." 

Human Life Amendment Testimony of Gualberto Ga rcia Jones, J.D. 

The H uman Life Amendment is the most fundamental expression 
of the pro-life movement's guiding principle that all human life is 
sacred. If you are pro-life it is probably beca use you believe life 

begins at  conception, and that is simply what this amendment 
states. 

As we all know, in 1973, J ustice H arry Blackmun single handedly ­
and in contradiction to all the medical and legal precedent ­
concluded that no unborn human being could be considered a 
"person" with the right to life beca use we simply could not define 
when life begins .  

Of course, we all know Harry Blackmun way lying, physicians had 

long ago determined that life begins at conception. Take this 
discussion of whether life exists before quickening from a 
textbook used at the Harva rd Medical School in 1823 : 
"The foetus prior to the time of quickening must be either dead or 
living. Now, that it is not the former is most evident from neither 
putrefaction nor decomposition taking place, which would be the 
inevitable consequences of an extinction of the vital principle ... 

Foetuses do actually die in the uterus before quickening, and then 
all the signs of death are present. The embryo, therefore, before 
that crisis, must be in a state different from that of death, a nd this 
can be no other than life." Elements of Medical J u risprudence. 



Harry Blackmun was not just lying about the medical precedent 
for life beginning at conception, but also about the artificial 
separation of a human being from a legal person with rights. 

Not only did Roe v. Wade dehumanize an entire class of human 
beings, it was also an unabashed exercise of judicial activism, 
which stripped the states of the power to regulate themselves in 

order to protect the health, safety, and morals of their people. 

An interesting development taking place currently North Dakota, 
is one that involves the case surrounding a regulation of chemical 
abortions that you passed in 2011. Abortion advocates are suing 
the state of North Dakota in order to assert that there is a state 
right to abortion in the North Dakota constitution. If this sounds 
far fetched, consider the fact that Alaska, Arizona, California, 
Connecticut, Florida, Illinois, Indiana, Massachusetts, Minnesota, 
Montana, New Jersey, New Mexico, Oregon, Tennessee, Vermont, 
West Virginia have had courts that have created a state right to 
abortion which is broader even than that in Roe v. Wade. If the 
North Dakota Supreme Court decides that abortion is a state 
constitutional right, then nothing except a H uman Life 

Amendment will be able to trump that. Pro-lifers might as well 
close shop. If you pass the Human Life Amendment, you could 
preempt this judicial activism and the state court would have no 
option but to respect life. 

The Human Life Amendment is the fulfillment of the 'state's duty 

to guarantee the eq ual protection of the laws to every human 
being. 

In Pru neyard, a Su preme Court case decided in 19 80, the court 
stated that it is proper for "the State to exercise its police power 
or its sovereign right to adopt in its own Constitution individual 



liberties more expansive than those conferred by the Federal 
Constitution." Pruneyard Shopping Center v. Robins { 1980). 

As the world moves further into the 21st century, emerging 
technologies are stretching the boundaries of medical ethics. 

Defining the right to life to extend to all human beings is 

imperative as we attempt to prevent the abuse of defenseless 
human beings for the sake of "scientific advancement." Abortion, 
euthanasia, cloning, human experimentation, organ harvesting, 
eugenics, the creation of human and animal hybrids; all of these 

require a strong definition of the human being which puts a 
premium on our unique intrinsic value and inalienable right to life. 

The abortion industry will try to create end of the world scenarios 
to dissuade pro-life legislators from supporting a Human Life 
Amendment. 

They will say that women will be prosecuted for miscarriages: 

There is not a single instance in 200 years of pro-life laws 
throughout American history of such a case. 

They will say that a Human Life Amendment will prohibit life 
saving medical care: In Ireland and Chile, where similar 
amendments are in force today, women enjoy some of the lowest 
maternal mortality rates in the entire world, certainly lower than 

in the United States. 

They will say that recognizing that life begins at conception will 
outlaw fertility treatments life In Vitro Fertilization. Yet, states like 
Louisiana and countries like Germany, allow In Vitro Fertilization 
while simultaneously protecting the embryo. 



They will say that a Human Life Amendment will outlaw abortion 
even in cases of rape or incest : North Dakota law forbids the 
death penalty for rapists, why should it impose the death penalty 
upon the innocent child? 

The fact of the matter is that the abortion industry stands to lose a 
multi billion-dollar industry if the humanity of the pre born child is 
recognized and defended, and the In Vitro Fertilization industry 
wants to remain totally unregulated to do what they please with 
human beings at the embryonic stage. 

A Human Life Amendment is the embodiment of the sanctity of 

life. It has been the goal of the pro-life movement since day one, 
and it is the best hope for a future, which respects the dignity of 
all human beings without subjecting any one person, or any class 

of persons to any other. 

Supreme Court Justice Anton in Scalia has stated, unequivocally, 
that /(the Constitution contains no right to an abortion" and Chief 
Justice Rehnquist has stated that, /(when it becomes clear that a 
prior constitutional interpretation is unsound, we are obliged to 
reexamine the question." 

With the Human Life Amendment, you have the opportunity to 
reexamine the question and state in no uncertain terms that you 
believe that life begins at conception. 



Representing the Diocese of Fargo 
and the Diocese of Bismarck 

Christopher T. Dodson 
Executive Director and 

General Counsel 

To: House Human Services Committee 
From: C ri topher T. Dodson , Executive Director 
Subject. , CR 4009 - Constitutional Right to Life 
Date: Ma ch 1 3 , 20 1 3  

The North Dakota Catholic Conference supports HCR 4009 because I t  gives the 

people of North Dakota the opportunity to decide w hether the state should 

recognize a legal right to l ife for all North Dakotans .  

A state constitutional amendment respecting the right to life i s  not 

unconstitutional . The U.S . Supreme Court h as said that states may enact their 

own laws and constitutional provisions to protect human life ,  i ncluding unborn 

human l ife .  Nor is a state constitutional amendment respecting the right to l ife 

made moot by the U .S .  Supreme Court's decision on abortio n .  It can guide the 

interpretation of existing and future state laws by all branches of state 

government. From time to time legal questions arise regarding unborn children -

and even the right to abortion - that are not made dispositi ve by the abortion 

decisions of the U .S .  Supreme Court. The resolution of those questions rightly 

belongs to the states , but sometimes the state's courts and executive offi ces can be 

l eft without constitutional guidance.  : CR 4009 would provide that guidance . 1  

Opponents of any recognition of the unborn child have conjured up a l l  kinds of 
s 

claims aboutl.fCR 4009, including that it would ban abortio n , in vitro 

ferti lization , and contraception .  CR 4009 does not ban anything.  It w ould take 

an act of the legislature to do that and even then the act could not contravene the 

directives of the U .S .  Supreme Court. 

Let's affirm in our state constitution that which thi s  Legislative Assembly and the 

people of North Dakota consistently affirmed with its laws - that every h uman 

being has a right to l ife that should be respected and protected to the greatest 
/"' 

extent possibl e .  We urge a Do Pass recommendation on CR 4009. 

1 Legislation passed last session is currently tied up in court because the abortion clinic in Fargo is 
claiming that the North Dakota Constitution grants a "right to abortion" that is greater in scope 
than the right found in the U.S.  Constitution. 

l 03 S. 3rd St. ,  S u i te I 0 • B ismarck, ND 5850 I 
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To m D. Fre 1 e r, EXEC U TI VE DIR ECTO R  

-:rr f House Human Services Committee 
SCR 4009 

March 13, 2013 

M r. Cha irman and mem bers of the House H u m a n  Services Com m ittee, I am Tom Freier with the 

N o rth Da kota F a m i ly Al l ia nce here to offer testi mony in  favor of SCR 4009. 

The text of the measure q u ite s i m p ly seeks to recognize l ife at its begi n n ing a n d  to defend that 

l ife at every stage. 

The people of North Da kota u n d erstand what is in  debate. 

They can a n swer a very si m p l e  q u estion by com p leting a sentence with an h o n est response. 

"It is OK to h ave an a bortion when 
II 

---------------------

"It is OK to term i n ate the l ife of a whole, separate, u n iq u e, l ivi ng h u m a n  being 

when 
11 

"It is OK to kill a baby in the womb when -------------------------�� 

The people of North Da kota u n d ersta nd what is in debate and a re cap a b le of responding to the 

q u estion,  posed in SCR 4009-Shou ld the inalienable right to life of every human being at any 
stage of development be recognized and protected. ? 

N D FA supports ending a l l  abortion.  

M r. Chairman a n d  m embers of the H ouse H u m a n  Services Comm ittee, N DFA su p ports SCR 4009 

a n d  asks for a Do Pass. 

3220 1 8 th S tree t S · Fa rgo, NO 58 1 04 · Ph o n e :  70 1 -364-0676 
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So what if aooiiion ends l ife? 
I believe that life starts at conception. And it's never stopped me from being pro-choice * 
BY MARY ELIZABETH IMLLIAMS 

(Credit frentusha via iStock) 

Of all the diabolically clever moves the 
anti-choice lobby has ever pulled, 
surely one of the greatest has been its 
consistent co-opting of the word "life." 
Life ! Who wants to argue with that? 
Who wants be on the side of . . .  
not-life? That's why the language of 
those who support abortion has for so 
long been carefully couched in other 
terms. While opponents of abortion 
eagerly describe themselves as 
"pro-life," the rest of us have had to 
scramble around with not nearly as 
big-ticket words like "choice" and 
"reproductive freedom." The "life" 
conversation is often too thorny to 
even broach. Yet I know that 
throughout my own pregnancie� 
never wavered for a moment in the 
berret that I was carrymg a human life 
inside of me. I believe that's what a 
fetus is: a human life. And that doesn't 
make me one iota less solidly 
pro-choice. 

As Roe v. Wade enters its fifth decade, 
we find ourselves at one of the most schizo moments in our national relationship with reproductive choice. In the past 
year we've endured the highest number of abortion restrictions ever. Yet support for abortion rights is at an all-time 
high, with seven in 10 Americans in favor of letting Roe v. Wade stand, allowing for reproductive choice in all or "most" 
cases. That's a stunning 10 percent increase from just a decade ago. And in the midst of this unique moment, Planned 
Parenthood has taken the bold step of reframing the vernacular - moving away from the easy and easily divisive words 
"life" and "choice." Instead, as a new promotional film acknowledges, "It's not a black and white issue." 

It's a move whose time is long overdue. It's important, because when we don't look at the complexities of reproduction, 
we give far too much semantic power to those who'd try to control it. And we play into the sneaky, dirty tricks of the 
anti-choice lobby when we on the pro-choice side squirm so uncomfortably at the ways in which they've repeatedly 
appropriated the concept of '1ife." 
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o::.:t;...::.:;£::;;, . That's a difficult thing for liberals like me to talk 
lest we wind up looking like death-panel-loving, kill-your-grandma-and-your-precious-baby storm troopers. Yet a -

fetus can be a human life without having the same rights as the woman in whose body it resides. She's the boss. Her life 
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and what is right for her circumstances and her health should automatically trump the rights of the non-autonomous 
entity inside of her. Always. 

we on the pro-choice side get cagey around the life question, it makes us illogically contradictory. I have friends 
have referred to their abortions in terms of "scraping out a bunch of cells" and then a few years later were exultant 

over the pregnancies that they unhesitatingly described in terms of "the baby" and "this kid." I know women who have 
been relieved at their abortions and grieved over their miscarriages. Why can't we agree that how they felt about their 
pregnancies was vastly different, but that it's pretty silly to pretend that what was growing inside of them wasn't the 
same? Fetuses aren't selective like that. They don't qualify as human life only if they're intended to be born. 

When we try to act like a pregnancy doesn't involve human life, we wind up drawing stupid semantic lines in the sand: 
first trimester abortion vs. second trimester vs. late term, dancing around the issue trying to decide if there's a single 
magic moment when a fetus becomes a person. Are you human only when you're born? Only when you're viable outside 
of the womb? Are you less of a human life when you look like a tadpole than when you can suck on your thumb? 

We're so intimidated by the wingnuts, we get spooked out of having these conversations. We let the archconservatives 
browbeat us with the concept of "life," using their scare tactics on women and pushing for indefensible violations like 
forced ultrasounds . Why? Because when they wave the not-even-accurate notion that "abortion stops a beating heart" 
they think they're going to trick us into some damning admission. They believe that if we call a fetus a life they can go 
down the road of making abortion murder. And I think that's what concerns the hell out of those of us who support 
unrestricted reproductive freedom. 

But we make choices about life all the time in our country. We make them about men and women in other nations. We 
make them about prisoners in our penal system. We make them about patients with terminal illnesses and accident 
��><· We still have passionate debates about the justifications of our actions as a society, but we don't have to do it 

being bullied around by the vague idea that if you say we're talking about human life, then the jig is up, 

It seems absurd to suggest that the only thing that makes us fully human is the short ride out of some lady's vagina. That 
distinction may apply neatly legally, but philosophically, surely we can do better. Instead, we let right-wingers perpetuate 
the sentimental fiction that no one with a heart - and certainly no one who's experienced the wondrous miracle of 
family life - can possibly resist tiny fingers and tiny toes growing inside a woman's body. We give a platform to the 
notion that, as Christina Locke opined in a recent New York Times Op-Ed, "motherhood had slyly changed us. We went 
from basking in the rights that feminism had afforded us to silently pledging never to exercise them. Nice mommies 
don't talk about abortion." 

Don't they? The majority of women who have abortions - and one in three American women will - are already 
mothers. And I can say anecdotally that I'm a mom who loved the lives she incubated from the moment she peed on 
those sticks, and is also now well over 40 and in an experimental drug trial. If by some random fluke I learned today I 
was pregnant, you bet your ass I 'd have an abortion. I'd have the World's Greatest Abortion. 

My belief that life begins at conception is mine to cling to. And if you believe that it begins at birth, or somewhere 
around the second trimester, or when the kid finally goes to college, that's a conversation we can have, one that I hope 
would be respectful and empathetic and fearless. We can't have it if those of us who believe that human life exists in 
utero are afraid we're somehow going to flub it for the cause. In an Op-Ed on "Why I'm Pro-Choice" in the Michigan 
Daily this week, Emma Maniere stated, quite perfectly, that "Some argue that abortion takes lives, but I know that 
abortion saves lives, too." She understands that it saves lives not just in the most medically literal way, but in the roads 

women who have choice then get to go down, in the possibilities for them and for their families. And I would put the 
of a mother over the life of a fetus every single time - even if I still need to acknowledge my conviction that the 

is indeed a life. A life worth sacrificing. "* 
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Sixty-Third Legislative Assembly of North Dakota 
Senate Concurrent Resolution 4009 

Testimony of Anna Higgins, J .D. 
Director of the Center for Human Dignity, Family Research Council 

March 1 3 ,  20 1 3  

Mr. Chairman and honorable members of the committee, thank you for giving me the 

opportunity to testify before you today. My name is Anna Higgins. I am the Director of the 

Center for Human Dignity at the Family Research Council, a Christian public policy 

organization that since 1 983 has promoted and defended human life, religious liberty and family 

values in the United States. We represent more than 1 .5 million people from Evangelical, 

Catholic, and other Christian denominations around the country. I speak today as a representative 

of Americans who oppose the destruction of human life in the womb. Fundamentally, we believe 

that life begins at conception and that this life is worthy of respect and equality under the law. 

We also believe that abortion is incredibly harmful to women, physically and psychologically. 

Humanity of the Unborn : 

The denial of basic human rights of the unborn has become an indefensible position. It i s  

indisputable that an unborn child is a unique person from conception to birth. I t  is a foundational 

principle of western thought that life is a fundamental right given to all men by their Creator. It 

was this principle that guided our founding fathers to declare in our country's first foundational 

document, that all men are created equal and endowed by their Creator with unalienable rights, 

among which, predominant is the right to life. Liberty and the pursuit of happiness are of no 

consequence unless a person is first afforded the most fundamental of all rights, life. As Thomas 

Jefferson noted, "The God that gave us life, gave us l iberty at the same time."1 

1 Thomas Jefferson, A Summary View ofthe Rights of British America, 1 774: 1 35 .  

1 



Previous to Roe v. Wade, the most egregious violation of civil rights handed down by the 

Supreme Court was Dred Scott v. Sanford in which the Court determined that a slave was not a 

person but rather property. This decision was rectified by the 1 4th amendment which guaranteed 

due process to all persons. The 1 4th amendment is violated by the act of abortion. 

Abortion denies a unique human being the right to due process and equal protection under the 

law. Either an unborn child is a person or he is property. If he is a person, as has been determined 

conclusively by scientific evidence, it is incumbent upon the government, which is instituted to 

secure our inalienable rights, to protect every person's fundamental right to life in all 

circumstances. 

Protecting all human life from the moment of conception until natural death is not and should not 

be limited to the narrow practice of abortion. Equality under the law demands that every human 

being is protected under laws meant for such protective purposes. If the unborn child is truly a 

unique human being, which we now know to be medically accurate, then protection should be 

afforded the unborn, regardless of viability, in areas such as homicide statutes, wrongful death, 

and chemical endangerment of a child. In Alabama, for example, the Alabama Declaration of 

Rights, the state constitutional provision that establishes inalienable rights for all persons (Ala. 

Const. 1 90 1 ,  § 1 ), mirroring the language of the U.S. Declaration of lndependence, was cited as a 

reason to support the applicability of the homicide statute as well as the wrongful death statute to 

the unborn regardless of viability. The Alabama Supreme Court noted that those words, "affirm 

that each person has a God-given right to life." (Hamilton v. Scott, October term, 20 1 1 -201 2, 

footnote 3 ,  p 1 4) .  

2 



As Abraham Lincoln said in reflection upon the Declaration of Independence, "nothing stamped 

with the divine image and likeness was sent into the world to be trodden on and degraded . . .  ".2 

All persons are so stamped from the moment conception. 

Whereas after birth, a person is protected from discrimination based on gender, race, and 

disability, legal abortion and the denial of basic protections to human beings at very early stages 

of development asks us to discriminate against a person based on his age and development. This 

position is incompatible with a Constitution and a society that places such high value on the 

rights of an individual. It is particularly troubling to deny these rights to those persons who do 

not have a way to speak for themselves but rather rely on those in power for protection. 

As President Obama recently reminded us, "This is our first task, caring for our children. It's our 

first job. If we don't get that right, we don't get anything right. That's how, as a society, we will 

be judged." Knowing what we now know about the development of the unborn and dangers of 

abortion, are we honestly prepared to say that legal abortion the denial of the right to life for the 

unborn is an acceptable price to pay for our liberty? 

Importance of S.C.R. 4009: 

The importance of this resolution is first of all that it recognizes the fact that two persons are 

implicated in the every abortion- the mother and the child. These two lives are distinct, separate 

and both worthy of full protection of the law. 

Secondly, this resolution recognizes the importance of allowing the citizens of North Dakota to 

express their will to recognize the unborn child as a person before their will can be preempted by 

2 Abraham Lincoln, Lewistown, IL, Aug 1 7, 1 858,  Speech during Senate contest with Stephen 
Douglas. 
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the State Supreme Court. This amendment can prevent judges from legislating from the bench 

and creating a state constitutional right to abortion that could exceed the perimeters set by Roe 

and Casey. This judicial tactic has been seen used in states like FL making it almost impossible 

to pass commonsense regulations on abortion- even regulations that mirror those upheld by the 

Supreme Court in Casey and subsequent abortion decisions. Amending the state constitution is 

the only way to control State Courts from preempting the will of the people to regulate abortion. 

Fetal Development: 

When a human sperm penetrates the human egg, a zygote is formed. A zygote is the first cell 

formed at conception and has "a genetic composition that is absolutely unique to itself, different 

from any other human that has ever existed, including that of its mother (thus disproving he 

claim that what is involved in abortion is merely ' a  woman and her body' .  "3 The DNA present at 

this point contains the entire design of the person and guides development of physical 

characteristics and personality.4 If the zygote were not a human being, but a mere collection of 

human cells, it would exhibit cellular life but it would not exhibit the "coordinated interactions 

directed toward a higher level of organization. "5 

3 Keith Moore and T.V.N Persaud, The Developing Human: Clinically Oriented Embryology, 6th 
ed (Philadelphia: W.B.  Saunders Co.,  1 998): 77, 350. 

4 Ibid. 

5 Cathy Cleaver Ruse, Esq. and Rob Schwarzwalder, The Best Pro-Life Arguments for Secular 
Audiences, Family Research Council (20 1 1 )  http://www. frc.org/brochure/the-best-pro-life­
arguments-for-secular-audiences : 4. 

4 



About six days after fertilization, the embryo is implanted into the uterus and at about 22 days, 

blood is circulating and heartbeat can be detected on ultrasound. At six weeks after conception, a 

baby has electrical brain activity and eyes, eyelids, nose, mouth, and tongue are formed and at 

six to seven weeks electrical brain activity can be detected. By eight weeks, the baby, now called 

a fetus, has all the organs found in any newborn infant. By ten weeks the child can grasp, stretch 

and kick. 6 These biological facts highlight the inherent uniqueness and humanity of the unborn 

from the moment of conception. 

Conclusion : 

A decision by a Court cannot confer moral legitimacy on any choice. Medical science shows 

that a unique human being is present from the moment of conception. This biological truth e 

demands a response that upholds the protection for all life, born and pre-born, under the law. 

An amendment presented to the people of North Dakota would allow the will of the people to be 

established before a state court is able to preempt the democratic process by legislating from the 

bench. Any law that denies the humanity of the unborn violates the very foundational ideals upon 

which this country was formed. Life is not a right that is given by man, thus, neither can it be 

taken away by man. As long as we do not protect persons at all stages of development under the 

law, we teach the citizens of our country and the world that only certain persons are worthy of 

being a part of society. It is imperative that we end this arbitrary discrimination against unborn 

children. 

6 Cathy Cleaver Ruse, Esq. and Rob Schwarzwalder, The Best Pro-Life Arguments for Secular 

Audiences, Family Research Council http:/ /www.frc. org/brochure/the-best-pro-life-arguments­
for-secular-audiences : 7-8, and Ashley Morrow Fragoso, Fetal Pain, Can Unborn Children Feel 
Pain in the Womb ?  Family Research Council (20 1 0) http://downloads.frc.org/EF/EF1 OH06.pdf : 
1 -3 .  
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Test imony for N D  Legis lature H o use of Represe ntatives 

H e a lth a nd H u m a n  Services Co m m ittee 

M a rch 13, 2013 

I am Dr.  Kristen Ca i n, a n d  I a m  a re pro d u ctive e ndocrino logist practici ng i n  Fargo. I a m  writing to u rge 

you to o p pose SCR 4009 . For the reco rd, I a lso o ppose SB2303, a nd SB2305.  But I w i l l  confi ne my 

remarks today to SCR 4009, a lthough m a ny of these points a l so hold for my o ppositio n  of the othe r two 

b i l l s .  

I graduated from J a m estown Col l ege i n  J a mestown, ND with a BA i n  chem istry, biology, a n d  math and 

t h e n  atte nded Johns  Hopkins School  of Medic ine.  I d id  a n  i nternship i n  i nternal  M edic ine at the 

U niversity of Virg in ia  and returned to Ho pkins fo r my residency i n  O bstetrics a nd Gyneco logy. I then did 

a fe l lows h i p  i n  Repro d u ctive E n docrin o logy a n d  I nfertil ity at UCLA. Fol lowing m y  tra i n i ng, I served a s  an 

Assista nt P rofessor at S U NY Stony Brook and Winthrop U n iversity Hospita l for 1 6  yea rs whi le running 

the l a rgest a n d  most successfu i iVF practice o n  Lo ng Isla nd, NY.  I have over 20 yea rs of experience a nd 

expertise i n  i nferti l ity, t h i rd pa rty re production, embryology, women's hea lth, contraception, a n d  

ectopic p regna ncy. I a m  c u rrently working i n  Fargo where I have happi ly returned t o  my fa m i ly a n d  m y  

roots. 

In particu l a r, SCR4009 p rovides fo r the recognit ion a nd status of person hood fo r a l l  h u m a n  l ife at a ny 

stage of d eve lopment. This would  cod ify i nto law a status that d oes n ot curre ntly exist. It is a na rrow 

i nterpretation of l ife based on the rel ig ious bel iefs of a few a n d  is not backed by science, law or other 

rel ig ions.  Cod ifying a re l ig ious bel ief a bout the beg i n n i ng of life is ak in  to a J e h ova h's Witness 

atte m pting to m a ke blood tra n sfusions i l lega l fo r a l l  North Dakota ns because it i s  their bel ief that those 

who acce pt a blood tra n sfus ion can not be save d .  Clea rly, most of us who do not share this be l ief would 

be a ppal led at a smal l  gro u p  m a king such a n  i m portant medica l  decisio n  for us .  How a re re prod uctive 

d e cis ions a ny d iffe rent? 

Not o n ly that, b ut fu l ly h a lf of every woma n's l i fe is spent i n  the time between ovulation a nd knowing 

fo r certa i n  whether or not she i s  p regnant.  Are we wi l l ing to hold al l  wom e n  hostage and p revent the ir  

p hysici a ns from provi d i n g  ca re for  h a lf of women's  l ives because we ca n n ot be certain that  they a re n ot 

p regna nt? 

SCR 4009 ra ises m a ny legal contradictions.  By d efi n ing l ife as begi n n i ng with fe rti l ization, a ny loss of l ife 

i nc lud ing loss of a n  embryo i n  cu lture co u l d  be construed as ma nslaughter a n d  t ried as such .  It ignores 

the scie nce that shows that 9 o ut of 10 fe rt i l ized eggs do not ever beco m e  a ba by. Are we supposed to 

i nvestigate each normal  m e nstrua l  cycl e  in a sexual ly active woman as a poss i b l e  death? By defi n ing l ife 

in this way, it puts the l ife of t h e  embryo o n  e q u a l  or greater footing than the mother d u ri ng her  

p regna ncy. Th is  reduces a l l  re productive age women to nothing but baby ca rr iers, without a ny rights to 

common sta ndard of ca re medica l  treatm e nts i n cluding anything that cou ld  possibly i nte rfe re with 

i m pl a ntation such as ove r the cou nter co ld med ications, pain re l ieve rs, b i rth co ntrol p i l ls, cancer 

che mothera py a nd even some fe rti l ity med ications.  It i nterferes with the a bi l ity of physicians to 



prescri be a p pro p riate treatment to a l l  women in the second half of their  m e nstrual  cycle beca use of the 

possibi l ity of pregnancy.  

By d efi n i n g  human l ife at every stage of developme nt, a n d  by protecting l ife at every stage, this a lso 

ca uses p ro blems with m e d ica l  d ecision making at the end of l ife. End of l i fe is n ot d efined here, a n d  this 

could interfere with the a b i l ity of tra nsplant surgeo ns to harvest orga ns from bra in-dead patients o n  l ife 

support.  It could preve nt fa m i l ies of b ra i n-dead or term inal  patie nts fro m stop p i n g  venti lation or other 

extre m e  measures i n  ho peless cases, i ncreasing the cost burden to the fa m i l ies a nd the state, a nd 

i ncreasing the e moti o n a l  d istress to the fa mi l ies a n d  the patients. 

I nterfe ri ng with medical  d ecis ion m a ki ng at this level w i l l  prohi bit North Da kota from attra cti ng the 

ski l led d octo rs it needs to ca re fo r its growing popu latio n .  Doctors fi n d  cri m i n a l izati o n  of medicine a n d  

l itigation risks t o  b e  profo u n d ly u nattractive. It  w i l l  a lso make North Da kota fa r less attractive t o  yo u ng 

profess iona l  women.  We need d e ntists a nd lawyers, accou nta nts a n d  teachers, n u rses, smal l  business 

owners a n d  ch i ld  care p rovi d e rs .  But who wi l l  wa nt to work here, if she ca n't get ro utine medical  ca re 

because the law says that she is n ot as important as a ny embryo she m ight be hosting? 

I 'd  l i ke to close by sharing 2 stories about my father with yo u .  My father was t h e  d e a n  a n d  choir 

d i rector of J a mestown Col lege fo r m a ny yea rs. I n  1981 he had a l ive r t ra nsplant from a 19 year o ld boy 

who was ki l led in an acc ident.  The donor was bra i n  dead b ut there was no t ra u m a  to his i ntern a l  o rgans.  

Donati n g  his o rgans gave h is  fa m i ly the a bi l ity to create some se nse fro m a sen s e less tragedy. Receiving 

his live r gave o u r  fa m i ly 30 m o re years with my dad.  D u ring that time he saw u s  grad uate, get ma rried 

and give him g ra nd c h i l d re n .  He ta ught hundreds more stude nts a nd i nfl ue nced m a n y  who we nt on to 

become doctors, priests, a n d  even a co l lege president i n  the state: kids who never thought they could  

d o  these things u nti l  they met my father. An o rgan tra nsplant l ike th is  would  not be possib le with 

pe rson h ood legislation .  

The second story is about h is  death .  I n  2011 he was enteri ng re nal  fa i l u re .  My s isters a n d  I had a l l  

offe red t o  d o nate a kid ney to h im b u t  a t  this point h i s  condit ion w a s  s o  fra i l  t h a t  he w a s  un l ikely to 

survive the surgery. F ina l ly, the ba lancing act betwee n  his a nti-reject ion meds,  h i s  kid ney meds, a n d  his 

pneumo nia meds co uld  n o  l o nger be susta ined.  He was a d m itted to Sa nfo rd's e xce l l e nt pal l iative care 

un it, where o n ly comfo rt measures were a ppl ied.  He d ied a week later, at peace a nd without suffe ring. 

H is entire fa m i ly was a ro un d  h i m ,  eve n his dog. He wasn't a lone for a s i ngle m i n ute d u ring that t ime.  

This  would n ot h ave bee n possi b le  with a perso nhood measure i n  p lace.  He w o u l d  have been forced to 

accept futi le a n d  pai nful i ntensive ca re he no lo nge r wa nted or neede d .  

Person hood would inte rfere with med ical decision making a t  both t h e  beg i n n i n g  a nd the e n d  o f  l ife . 

Person hood d iscrimin ates agai nst women in particular. Perso nhood i nterferes with rel igious freedom by 

im posing a re l ig ious view of the beg i n ning of l ife on those who don't agre e .  P e rsonhood l imits the care 

that women of reprod uctive age can receive for a ny medical  problems, n ot j ust a bo rtions. Personhood 

turns back the clock o n  medical  adva nces l i ke genetic thera py, in  vitro fe rt i l izatio n, o rgan 

tra nspla ntatio n, a n d  hospice ca re. 

I u rge you to vote NO agai n st SCR 4009 . 



Senate Bill 4009 
Testimony, Courtney Schaff 

Thank you Mr. Chairman and members of the committee: 

My name is Courtney Schaff, from District 2 1  in Fargo. I am a senior at North Dakota 
State University and I will graduate with a degree in Women and Gender Studies. My 
testimony today is not based on concrete statistics or a professional position, but as 
a citizen who was born, raised, and educated in North Dakota. I vote, pay taxes, and 
volunteer in my Fargo community and am committed to the betterment and growth 
of our state. I am asking you, as my elected law makers, to respect, trust, and defend 
the federal right of a woman to choose for herself and her family, when she is best 
able to provide the optimal emotional, physical and financial support for her 
children. I ask the committee for a DO NOT PASS on Senate Bill 4009. 
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Maria Wanchic District 3 5  

3 1 9  East Capito 1 Ave 

Bismarck ND 5 850 1 

255-3 1 6 1  or 390-2377 

mwanchic@hotmail.com 

Testimony in favor of SB2303, 2305. 2368. 4009 

Mr. Chairman and honorable members of the conunittee: 

My name is Maria Wanchic and I've lived here in the Bismarck/Mandan area my whole life. I am 
honored to be here today testifying in support of Senate B ill  2303, 2305, 2368 and 4009. My testimony 
wil l  last about 1 0  minutes. 

I'd like to play a few short audio clips from the Roe vs Wade oral arguments. It's not my intention to 
construe the words of anyone in these clips but only to call attention to the number of times the 
question of the unborn as persons comes up. (you can listen to the entire audio clip at www.oyez.org) 

(au dio clip, tracks 1 -7) f4l 

Throughout the one hour of Roe vs. Wade oral arguments the question of personhood for the unborn is 
discussed over and over again. As Justice Potter Stewart says answering that question is "critical to this 
case"'. However, after the much anticipated ruling it was revealed that the Supreme Court would be 
silent on this critical question. In the final analysis, the Supreme Court contradicted itself, flipped a 
coin on the question of life and chose to make freedom of choice the law of the land completely wiping 
off the board decades of various state anti-abortion laws. [11] 
Justices White and Rehnquist could not find a constitutional basis to allow for abortion on demand. 
Justice White wrote in his dissenting opinion: 

"!find nothing in the language or history of the Constitution to support the Court's judgment. The 
Court simply fashions and announces a new constitutional right for pregnant women and, with 
scarcely any reason or authority for its action, invests that right with sufficient substance to 
override most existing state abortion statutes. " [SJ 

In the Supreme Court's view state Jaws against abortion infringed upon the 1 4'1' amendment right to 
personal liberty. The court had twisted the concept of personal liberty to mean private choices. But 
private choices are l imited when they adversely affect other people or even the individual person. This 
would be the case with abortion because it's a decision to end the life of another person. States restrict 
personal liberty all the time in the cases of suicide, drug use, smoking, underage drinking, seat belts, 
and speed limits. Personal l iberty is trumped by the protection of human life .  (see note A) 
Later on in hjs career, Justice White made repeated attempts to overrule Roe vs Wade. In describing the 
right to ab01tion on demand he wrote, 

"In so denominating that liberty, the Court engages not in constitutional interpretation, but in the 
unrestrained imposition of its own extraconstitutional value preferences. " (6] 



In other words, the Supreme Court fashioned this new so called right based on a the whim of the age and 
personal preference, not on the constitution or even on any p1ior court cases. [7] 

The Ninth Amendment 

Another argument for abortion on demand used the 911' amendment by stating that abortion was an 
unenwnerated right (or a right not specifically spelled out in the constitution) retained by the American 
people. Under the meaning of the ninth amendment the state laws had already set the precedence that 
abortion was NOT a right retained by the American people. When the civil war ended in 1 865, 26 out 
of 36 states had already banned abortion. [8] By the year 1 900 every state had anti-abortion laws in 
place. (9] The people had spoken. The 1 973 ruling nullified the strict anti-abortion laws of 20 states 
who defended the unborn for over a century. [1 OJ 
During the mid 1 800's as medical research discovered that life begins at conception rather than at 
quickening (which is when the mother first feels the fetus move), it became a firm resolution in the 
minds of medical professionals that unborn life must be preserved and defended. [11] The American 
Medical Association in a declaratory statement presented to Congress in 1 857 used strong language 
against the increasing practice of abortion on demand. I quote: 

" . . .  this body. representing, as it does, the physicians of the land, publicly express its abhorrence of the 
unnatural and now rapidly increasing crime of abortion; that it avow its true nature, as no simple 

offence against public morality and decency, no mere misdemean01: . . " (12) 

The Declaration of Independence 

The Declaration oflndependence, the foundation of the constitution, asserts that we are created equal, 
not born equal and nothing has to be done or accomplished to attain the right to life .  Simply to be in 
existence is enough. By condoning abortion on demand, the Supreme Court condoned the civil 
right (or privileged right guaranteed by a govern ment) to take a h u man right (or God-given right 
bestowed by the Creator) away from those who can not speak for themselves. The right to be 
born is a h u man right. 

The 1 4th Amendment 

The 1 4th amendment elaborates on the declaration's basis of hwnan rights for persons. Mrs. 
Weddington, the attorney who argued the case against Texas in Roe vs. Wade admitted that if a fetus 
was a person with constitutional rights then she would have a very difficult case. She reasoned that 
fetus' have no protection under the 1 4th amendment because they are not yet born as citizens of the 
United States .  

This reasoning assumes that because a person does not become a citizen until after birth that they have 
no rights guaranteed by the Constitution. However the framers of our constitution used both the words, 
citizen and person in the 1 4111 amendment to describe who's life specifically is protected . You do not 
need to be a citizen to have your right to life protected. (see note B) Legal and even i llegal immigrants to 
the US sti ll have the same basic protection under the constitution. (131 If you are a person (born or 
unborn) and if you are within the borders of the US then your right to l ife specifically is protected by 
the 1 41h amendment. 



An Appeal to Objective, (Self-evident) Truths 

Over the last 20 years I have become grateful to those individuals who were pro-choice who were calm 
and respectful enough to have good dialogues. And what I've learned from those conversations i s  this :  
although there are many out there who believe abortion t o  b e  a right, when it comes down to it, the vast 
maj ority believe abortion to be a necessary wrong-doing or a necessary evil .  I have heard over and 
over again a laundry l ist of social issues that make abortion on demand necessary in their eyes. 

But this i s  my point: death should never ever be the answer to any social problem. Abortion on demand 
is not the way to deal with with unwanted human beings. When a society sees death as a solution to any 
issue then that society has lost it's wisdom and when a society raises death on a pedestal as a 
constitutional right, under the guise of personal l iberty, indeed it has lost its hope and when a people 
are pitted against their own future generation they are truly under some form of slavery. 

George Washington said, l iberty has an ordering to it. (141 We see this in the Declaration of 
Independence and the Constitution. Life is the first right mentioned, followed by liberty. Mr. 
Chainnan, Committee Members, and fellow citizens, true freedom, true l iberty, begins inside the heart 
of a person who chooses responsible citizenship which keeps the common good in mind and does not 
raise individual free wil l  up as the highest moral good. Many in our current culture think free will i s  
equal to freedom. Free will is only a tool that can b e  used for good and evil .  A very very powerful tool 
that carries with it an awesome responsibility to act in truth and self-sacrifice. I think most North 
Dakota's understand this concept. 

Through these pro-life bills we have a momentous opportunity to raise the dignity of the unborn to 
persons in North Dakota. We can become the first state in the nation to reclaim our true pro-l ife 
heritage. Although these bills are big step forward to ending abortion we also need to (both publicly 
and privately) always encourage an environment that supports family, community and personal 
responsibih ty. 
Lastly I'd l ike to make an appeal to the same God that our founders constantly referred to . John Adams 
said, 

"You have rights antecedent to all earth(y governments; rights that cannot be repealed or restrained by 
human laws; rights derivedfi-om the Great Legislator of the Universe. " 

The right to l ife is a h uman right which surpasses all j urisdictions and national boundaries. It i s  given 
by God himself. It is our very soul, bequeathed by the Creator, that raises the dignity of life to that of 
God himself It is this sacred gift which warrants the right to live and experience life on earth. It is  a 
God-given right for each and every human being to be born into this world and to live out their own 
unique story within it. 

I ask you once again to vote a DO PASS on these historic bills. Thank you for your time and attention. 

Notes 
A In the case of assisted suicide personal liberty has been given a higher status then protecting l ife. Only three states allow 
assisted suicide: Washington, Oregon, Montana. I also believe this to be wJconstitutional. 

B. The rights protected by the constitution of foreign nationals have been abused in my opinion since the attacks of 9/1 1 .  In 
the pre-9/ l l days immigrants were given much more freedom then they do now. 
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Chair  Weisz and Members of the Comm ittee: 

My name i s  Janel le  Moos. I a m  speaking this morning on beh a lf of CAWS N orth Dakota in 

opposition to SCR 4009. 

Our Coal it ion is a membership based organization that consists of 2 1 1ocal domestic vio l e n ce 

and rape cris is  centers located thro ughout the state that provide services to domestic v io lence, 

sexu a l  assa u lt, and sta l ki n g  victims i n  al l  53 cou nties and the reservations i n  North Da kota. Last 

year  a lone, t hese centers p rovided services to nearl y  900 vict ims of sexua l  assa u lt. 

Although o u r  Coal ition does not have a policy positio n  o n  abortion, we a re u n ited in o u r  

concern for victims o f  sexua l  assa u lt a n d  incest. SCR 4009, from o u r  pers pective, would b a n  a l l  

abortion, even for rape and incest victims.  We a ren't h e re today to debate t h e  issue o f  a b o rtion 

itse lf; so we wil l  l im it our  testimony to the specific excl usion of these exem ptions for rape and 

i ncest su rvivors in  HCR 4009. 

According to the N ational  Victim Center and N ational  Cri m e  Victims Research and Treatment 

Center's study e ntitled Rape in America : A Report to the N ation (1992) "pregna n cy from rape 

occu rs with "significant frequency". Of the est imated 12% of adu lt wom en i n  the U n ited States 

that have experienced at least one rape in their l ifet ime, 4.7% of th ese rapes resulted i n  

pregn ancy. Another study estimated that 25,000 pregnancies fo l lowing t h e  rape o f  a d u lt 

women occur annu al ly  (Stewart & Trussell  2000).  It's d ifficult to determine with certai nty the 

outcome of t h e  approximate 25,000 ra p e-related pregnancies that occu r in  the US, b ut one 
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study indicated that 26% of women pregn ant t h rough ra pe u nderwent abortions.  Of t h e  73% of 

women who carried their p regnancies to term, 36% placed their  i nfants u p  for adoption a nd 

64% raised their  ch i ldren they conceived through ra pe (Reardon et al 2000}. 

I am n ot h e re today to tell you that all su rvivors should or even want to have abortions; b ut 

they should have a choice. We bel ieve that s ince we ca nnot fu l ly u nderstand the p ath t h a t  

brought t h e m  t o  u s  w e  ca n not m a ke that very d ifficult decision for t h e m .  This is  a bout a l l owing 

a p erso n  who has had al l  decision making powers taken away from them as a resu lt of t h e  

assa u lt t o  m ake a very i m portant and personal  decision about their  health, t h e i r  fa m i ly, a n d  

the ir  futu re. This b i l l  a l l  b u t  e l iminates that opt ion .  

I u rge a DO N OT PASS on HCR 4009. 

Tha n k  You .  




